
 

Monitoring Officer 
Christopher Potter 
 
County Hall, Newport, Isle of Wight PO30 1UD 
Telephone (01983) 821000 
 

 

 

Details of this Cabinet meeting and other Council meetings can be viewed 
on the Isle of Wight Council’s website. This information may be available in 
alternative formats on request. Please note the meeting will be audio 
recorded and the recording will be placed on the website (except any part 
of the meeting from which the press and public are excluded). Young 
people are welcome to attend Council meetings however parents/carers 
should be aware that the public gallery is not a supervised area. 
 

 

 
 

Name of meeting CABINET 

Date THURSDAY 15 FEBRUARY 2024 

Time 5.00 PM 

Venue COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNTY HALL, NEWPORT, 
ISLE OF WIGHT 

Members of the 
Cabinet 

Cllrs P Jordan (Chairman), D Andre, J Bacon, P Fuller, 
J Jones-Evans, K Lucioni, L Peacey-Wilcox and 
I Stephens 

 Democratic Services Officer: Sarah MacDonald 
democratic.services@iow.gov.uk 

  
1. Minutes   
  
2. Declarations of Interest   
 
 To invite Members to declare any interest they might have in the matters on the 

agenda. 
  

3. Public Question Time - Maximum 15 Minutes for Written Questions and 15 
Minutes for Oral Questions   

 
 Questions may be asked without notice but to guarantee a full reply at the 

meeting, a question must be put including the name and address of the 
questioner by delivery in writing or by electronic mail to Democratic Services at 
democratic.services@iow.gov.uk, no later than two clear working days before the 
start of the meeting. The deadline for written questions will be Monday 12 
February 2024. 
  

4. Chairman's Announcements   
  

Public Document Pack

Page 1

https://iow.moderngov.co.uk/uuCoverPage.aspx?bcr=1
mailto:democratic.services@iow.gov.uk


5. Report of the Cabinet Member for Housing and Finance   
  
 (a) Budget and Council Tax Setting 2024-2025 and Future Years' Forecasts  

(Pages 5 - 76) 
  

6. Cabinet Member Announcements   
  
7. Consideration of the Forward Plan  (Pages 77 - 90) 
  
8. Members' Question Time   
 
 To guarantee a reply to a question, a question  must be submitted in writing or by 

electronic mail to democratic.services@iow.gov.uk no later than 5pm on Tuesday 
13 February 2024. A question may be asked at the meeting without prior notice 
but in these circumstances there is no guarantee that a full reply will be given at 
the meeting. 
  
 

 
CHRISTOPHER POTTER 

Monitoring Officer 
Wednesday, 7 February 2024 

 
 

Page 2

mailto:democratic.services@iow.gov.uk


 
Interests 
 
If there is a matter on this agenda which may relate to an interest you or your partner or 
spouse has or one you have disclosed in your register of interests, you must declare your 
interest before the matter is discussed or when your interest becomes apparent.  If the 
matter relates to an interest in your register of pecuniary interests then you must take no 
part in its consideration and you must leave the room for that item. Should you wish to 
participate as a member of the public to express your views where public speaking is 
allowed under the Council’s normal procedures, then you will need to seek a dispensation 
to do so. Dispensations are considered by the Monitoring Officer following the submission 
of a written request. Dispensations may take up to 2 weeks to be granted.  
 
Members are reminded that it is a requirement of the Code of Conduct that they should 
also keep their written Register of Interests up to date.  Any changes to the interests 
recorded on that form should be made as soon as reasonably practicable, and within 28 
days of the change.  A change would be necessary if, for example, your employment 
changes, you move house or acquire any new property or land.   
 
If you require more guidance on the Code of Conduct or are unsure whether you need to 
record an interest on the written register you should take advice from the Monitoring 
Officer – Christopher Potter on (01983) 821000, email christopher.potter@iow.gov.uk, or 
Deputy Monitoring Officer - Justin Thorne on (01983) 821000, 
email justin.thorne@iow.gov.uk. 
 

 
Notice of recording 
 
Please note that all meetings that are open to the public and press may be filmed or 
recorded and/or commented on online by the council or any member of the public or press. 
However, this activity must not disrupt the meeting, and if it does you will be asked to stop 
and possibly to leave the meeting. This meeting may also be filmed for live and 
subsequent broadcast (except any part of the meeting from which the press and public are 
excluded).  
 
If you wish to record, film or photograph the council meeting or if you believe that being 
filmed or recorded would pose a risk to the safety of you or others then please speak with 
the democratic services officer prior to that start of  the meeting. Their contact details are 
on the agenda papers. 
 
If the press and public are excluded for part of a meeting because confidential or exempt 
information is likely to be disclosed, there is no right to record that part of the meeting. All 
recording and filming equipment must be removed from the meeting room when the public 
and press are excluded. 
 
If you require further information please see the council guide to reporting on council 
meetings which can be found at 
http://www.iwight.com/documentlibrary/view/recording-of-proceedings-guidance-note  
 
All information that is recorded by the council is held in accordance with the Data 
Protection Act 2018.  For further information please contact Democratic Services at 
democratic.services@iow.gov.uk  
 

Page 3

mailto:christopher.potter@iow.gov.uk
mailto:justin.thorne@iow.gov.uk
http://www.iwight.com/documentlibrary/view/recording-of-proceedings-guidance-note
mailto:democratic.services@iow.gov.uk


Arrangements for Submitting Oral Questions at Meetings of Council and Cabinet:  
 
The front desk “opens” for public wishing to attend the meeting half an hour before the 
meeting.  
 
In the circumstances that a member of the public wishes to ask an oral question, they 
should approach the front desk and notify them of their intention. They will be given a form 
to complete which details their name, town/village of residence, email address and the 
topic of the question (not the question in full, unless they wish to provide this).  
 
These forms will be numbered in the order they are handed back.  
 
The time for registering questions will be for a 20 minute period (up to 10 minutes prior to 
the start of the meeting). After that time expires the forms will be collected and given to the 
Chairman of the meeting.  
 
If time allows after dealing with any written questions, the Chairman will then ask those 
who have submitted a form to put their question.  These will be in the order they were 
received.  As the subject matter is known, the Chairman should be able to indicate which 
member will reply.  If time permits the Chairman may accept further questions. 
 
The option to ask a supplementary question will be at the Chairman’s discretion.  
 
Once the defined period of time allowed for questions has passed (and assuming the 
Chairman has not extended this) then all remaining oral questions are left unanswered.  
 
No oral question will receive a guaranteed written response, unless the member 
responding indicates as such.  
 

Page 4



 
 

  
 

 
 

 

Cabinet Report         Purpose: For Decision 
 

  
 ISLE OF WIGHT COUNCIL 
 
Date THURSDAY 15 FEBRUARY 2024 
   
Title BUDGET & COUNCIL TAX SETTING 2024/25 & FUTURE 

YEARS FORECASTS  
 
Report of THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL AND CABINET MEMBER FOR 

TRANSPORT AND INFRASTRUCTURE, HIGHWAYS PFI AND 
TRANSPORT STRATEGY, STRATEGIC OVERSIGHT AND 
EXTERNAL PARTNERSHIPS 

 
 
 
 
CABINET SUMMARY 
 
1. Since May 2021, the Administration has listened and responded to the many 

challenges the Council faces to deliver a positive future for the Island and its 
community. The Administration's stated priority is to work together openly with 
the community to support and sustain our economy, environment and people. 

 
2. The Cabinet’s aspiration for the Council’s spending plans remains to reverse the 

annual cycle of cuts in the Council’s budgets and reinvest in the services the 
community would like to see.  However, the absence of funding keeping pace 
with inflation and pressures in Social Care has made that impossible.  In fact, 
over the past 13 years the Council has had to find savings of £97m. 

 
3. Despite the extreme financial pressures, there are proposals by the Cabinet to 

re-invest in services for the community generally as well as supporting small 
business innovation being the "heartbeat" of the Island economy.  The Cabinet's 
proposals include the following two funds: 

 
i) Community Capacity and Resilience Fund - £0.25m 
 

This is intended to strengthen overall community capacity and resilience, 
working with partners and the voluntary sector and building on the good work 
that has been achieved through government funded programmes 
(Household Support Fund/Family Hubs etc.).  It should be used to enable the 
voluntary and community sector to intervene where there are gaps in 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5a



provision and supporting individuals and families to become self-sustaining; 
to empower residents to have better control over their lives. 

 
ii) Place/Towns Initiative Fund - £0.2m 
 

This is a fund to support the delivery of the place plans that have been or are 
being delivered in areas across the Island; providing capital investments to 
support local initiatives identified in these local plans.  It is intended that the 
fund will work alongside the other funding opportunities that communities can 
access and will provide pump priming for local projects.  The aim is to support 
an improvement in the prosperity of the Island's communities. 
 

4. The Local Government financial envelope set by the Government in their 
Comprehensive Spending Review 2021 for the period 2022/23 to 2024/25 did 
not foresee the elevated and prolonged levels of inflation of the past 2 years.   

 
5. Within 6 months of the Comprehensive Spending Review being set in the Autumn 

of 2021 and just 1 month before it came into effect, the financial environment 
changed rapidly precipitated by the war in Ukraine and other economic factors 
causing inflation to escalate rapidly across the globe.  The enduring impact of 
elevated inflation has led to unavoidable and unplanned cost increases in the 
delivery of Council Services as well as a "cost of living crisis" for residents which, 
in turn, has increased the demand for Council Services.  These effects are being 
experienced in the current year and illustrated by the reported overspendings 
particularly across the Care Services and will endure into next year and beyond. 

 
6. Despite this climate of increased cost and demand, the funding envelope for local 

government has remained unchanged.  Consequently, the Budget setting 
process over this period has been some of the most challenging that the Council 
has experienced and has rendered the aspirations of the Administration to avoid 
savings impossible.  In stark contrast, the financial position of the Council, prior 
to the recent announcement of additional funding was such that the Council 
faced a Budget Deficit for 2024/25 of £8.5m.  This deficit being after applying an 
increase in Council Tax of 4.99% in accordance with the Government's own 
assumptions. 
 

7. Rising cost pressures and constrained funding is a feature across Local 
Government as a whole, with services such as Adults Social Care, Children's 
Services and Homelessness experiencing the most severe increases in price, 
demand and therefore cost and resulting in all councils needing to continue to 
make substantial budget savings. 

 
8. For 2024/25, additional spending of £11.3m in Children's Services and Adult 

Social Care alone is required next year simply to maintain services at existing 
levels.  This increase is represented by the inflation and demand "hangover" of 
the current year of £4.9m carrying through into next year plus further inflation and 
demand pressures for next year itself; the most significant of which relates to the 
9.8% increase in the National Living Wage (a further £4m) which is passed over 
to providers of care supporting those residents whose care is paid for by the 
Council. 

 
9. Until the recent announcement of £600m of additional funding to Local 

Authorities by the Secretary of State on 24 January 2024, the Government had 

Page 6



adhered to the Comprehensive Spending Review 2021, and not provided any 
relief for the extraordinary inflation and demand pressures being experienced by 
Councils over this 3 year period up to and including 2024/25. 

 
10. Prior to the announcement of the £600m, the Provisional Local Government 

Finance Settlement, provided an increase in funding for Social Care generally of 
£3.1m, this was pre-announced and part of the Comprehensive Spending 
Review and intended to cover the new burdens associated with "Market 
Sustainability and Fair Cost of Care" set out in the white paper "People at the 
Heart of Care".  In addition, the funding was provided to enable the Council to 
support Hospital Discharge, which itself therefore added costs to the Council.  
The funding was not provided for general increases in cost and demand.  

 
11. Of the announced increase in funding, £500m is ringfenced for Adult and 

Children's Social Care.  The written statement of the Secretary of State set out 
that: 

 
"It will enable councils to continue to provide crucial social care services for their 
local communities, particularly for children" 
 
"Where possible, councils should invest in areas that help place children’s social 
care services on a sustainable financial footing, whilst being mindful of the level 
of adult social care provision. This includes investment in expanding family help 
and targeted early intervention, expanding kinship care, and boosting the number 
of foster carers. This increase in funding will be reflected in the local authority 
allocations published at the final Local Government Finance Settlement." 
 
"This funding, in turn, will reduce pressures on other areas of children’s services 
such as home to school transport, where we recognise there has been a 
significant increase in pressures for special educational needs and disability 
services." 

 
12. For the Council the increase in Social Care funding has been confirmed at £1.6m, 

resulting in total Social Care funding from Government of an additional £4.7m in 
2024/25. 
 

13. Whilst funding from Government for Social Care generally has increased by 
£4.7m, the Cabinet are proposing to increase spending in Adult and Children's 
Social Care by £11.3m, resulting in a Social Care Funding Gap of £6.6m.  The 
increase of £11.3m will just maintain current service levels and ensure that the 
financial position of these services remains robust in the short and medium term.    

 
14. The Settlement also confirmed the flexibility to increase Council Tax by an 

additional 2% (over the 3.0% limit for general purposes) for Adult Social Care 
and amounting to £2.0m, providing some limited relief to the £6.6m Social Care 
Funding Gap. 

 
15. The recent announcement by the Secretary of State also mentioned additional 

funding for the Isle of Wight Council specifically as follows: 
 

"In recognition of the unique circumstances facing our island authorities, and their 
physical separation from the mainland, we will be increasing funding to the Isle 
of Wight and Isles of Scilly. We will set out full details at the final Settlement." 

Page 7



 
The Final Settlement was announced on 05 February 2024 and it has been 
confirmed that the additional sum for the Council is £3m (taking the total funding 
received relating to physical separation to £4m). 

 
16. It was originally anticipated that the Council's Budget Savings requirement for 

2024/25 would be £2m. Given the financial distress being experienced 
particularly in Adult and Children's Social Care in the current year, the S.151 
Officer reported to the Corporate Scrutiny Committee on 07 November that to 
avoid the Council entering the following year 2024/25 with a "Structural Deficit", 
the Council would need financial relief from a combination of the following: 

 
i) Additional funding for Social Care 
ii) Further funding to accommodate the additional costs of providing council 

services due to physical separation 
iii) Manage and mitigate the Budget pressures being experienced. 

 
17. Following the announcement of the provisional Local Government Settlement on 

18 December 2023, the Council's S.151 Officer advised the Corporate Scrutiny 
Committee on 09 January 2024 that: 

 
"It is also deeply concerning that the increased funding for Social Care is 
significantly lower than the cost pressures that the Council will face next year in 
those Services." 

 
18. "Due to the significant increase in costs of Social Care as well as inflation more 

generally experienced across the current year and continuing into future years, 
it is inevitable that the savings requirements for 2024/25 will need to amount to 
at least £3m." 
 

19. In summary, and subject to final confirmation of the final Local Government 
Finance Settlement, the proposed Budget for 2024/25 has been prepared on the 
following basis: 
 
Budget   2024/25 

£m 
Deficit (prior to funding announcement 24 January 2024 and 
assuming a 4.99% Increase in Council Tax)  8.5 
Additional Social Care Funding  (1.6) 
Additional Islands Funding  (3.0) 
Savings Proposals 2024/25  (2.7) 
   
Structural Deficit - To be met from General Reserves  1.2 

 
Despite the additional funding from Government, an increase in Council Tax of 
4.99% and savings proposals amounting to £2.75m, the Council will still enter 
2024/25 with a "Structural Deficit" and needing to draw on General Reserves of 
£1.2m. 
 

20. The level of savings at £2.75m has incorporated the financial impact of the 
Council's recent decision to increase the maximum support through the Local 

Page 8



Council Tax Support scheme to 75% and to remove the exceptional hardship 
fund.  For the second year in succession, the S.151 Officer reminds the Council 
that to demonstrate the rationality of its decisions, exercise proper financial 
governance and not place the Council at undue risk, those decisions must be 
properly informed and cognisant of the Council's financial position and as 
exemplified earlier in this report.  These are key determinants when considering 
the rationality of decisions.  This decision by the Council was taken in the 
absence of: 

 
i) An understanding of both the financial implications to the Council and the 

impact that compensating savings would have on the delivery of Council 
services 

ii) Whether in fact, the decision to remove the hardship fund would render the 
scheme inchoate or not whole given its primary purpose.   

 
The rationality of decisions made in such circumstances would be a key 
consideration should the Government ever be minded to commission a Best 
Value inspection of the Council. 

 
21. In this regard, it is imperative that in considering the Budget for 2024/25 any 

proposals (including amendments) are mindful of the Council’s overall financial 
capacity and the ability to continue to deliver services on a sustainable basis.  
Good financial governance requires that any proposals that are made are only 
considered following proper due diligence involving sufficient analysis and 
evaluation of risk and legality. Failure to do so will put the Council at risk. 

 
22. The Social Care pressures of £11.3m plus a further £8.2m of unavoidable costs 

across all other Council Services resulting from the substantial and prolonged 
financial impact of inflation has culminated in total additional costs for the Council 
of £19.5m in 2024/25.  These are the driving factors behind the challenges of 
setting a Budget for 2024/25 which requires the Council to make such a 
significant withdrawal from Reserves to balance the Budget. 

 
23. In proposing this Budget to Full Council, significant reliance is still being placed 

on the Covid Contingency to manage current and future Budget Pressures and 
Risks associated with Adult Social Care in particular but also for the Leisure 
Service.  The Covid Contingency was established on the basis that Covid related 
costs would "wind out" over time and the use of the Reserve would match the 
costs until they ceased.  Associating costs with the Covid pandemic is becoming 
subjective and it is becoming increasingly unclear whether Covid related costs 
will "wind out" or if they have become embedded within the Council's cost base.  
It is anticipated that the remaining funding within the Covid Contingency of £5m 
will be sufficient to support the Council's budget for the next 2 years at which time 
it will be exhausted. 

 
24. The Council must be narrowly, if not singularly, focussed on addressing its 

medium term Budget Deficit if it is to plan responsibly for the future delivery of 
the Councils' statutory duties.  The imperative is for the Council to maintain a 
record of responsible financial management and to achieve a "structurally 
balanced" Budget in the future.    Looking ahead to 2027/28 it is forecast that the 
Council will have a 3 Year Deficit of £3m and assuming: 
 

Page 9



i) An "Island Funding" award of an additional £3m (i.e. £4m in total) 
ii) Budget Savings in 2024/25 of £2.75m 
iii) Assumed Council Tax increases of 4.99% per annum, representing 2.99% 

for general purposes and 2% for Adult Social Care in 2024/25 and an 
equivalent 4.99% for all future years of the Forecast 

iv) Adoption of a 100% Council Tax premium for second homes amounting to 
£4.2m from April 2025.  

 
The combination of these factors has substantially improved the Council's future 
forecast financial position and mitigated the scale of the future Budget Deficit 
upon which savings are based. 
 
Based on these assumptions, the Council is forecast to achieve a "structurally 
balanced" Budget in 2025/26 although the Council's General Reserves will have 
been reduced to £10.9m in 2024/25, leaving "headroom" above the minimum 
level of reserves (£8m) for financial risk of just £2.9m.  
 

25. The Council should take every opportunity to restore its General Reserves 
"headroom" to £4m or more to guard against known uncertainty and financial 
shocks such as those experienced over the past 2 years and which rapidly saw 
the Council experience over £30m of unplanned financial pressures.  Underlying 
General Reserves at £10.8m over the medium term are extremely modest and 
represents just 2.5% of total gross expenditure. 
 

26. Whilst the £3m Deficit is a "central base case" assumption for the Council's future 
forecast, there remains risk attached to this forecast which could vary between 
+/- £5m due to cost risks and funding uncertainty.  The most significant risks are:   

 
i) The impact on Council Services of the prolonged elevated levels of inflation 

both on its own costs and in demand for Council Services 
ii) Unavoidable cost pressures that may arise, particularly in Care Services 
iii) The level of successful business rate appeals arising from the revaluation 

in 2023/24 
iv) The impact of the review of Local Government Funding described below.  

 
Taking these risks together, the Forecast Budget Deficit has the potential to 
vary by between +/- £5m, which when spread over 3 years, would therefore 
amount to annual savings requirements of £1m p.a. (central base case annual 
sum) +/- £1.67m per annum. 

 
27. Given the uncertain nature of the Forecast Budget Deficit for future years, the 

forecast of £1m savings for the years 2025/26, 2026/27 and 2027/28 must be 
considered as indicative at this stage. 

 
28. The review of Local Government Funding is now anticipated to take place in 

2026/27 at the earliest and has the potential to adversely affect the Council's 
funding level.  The funding review covers the following: 

 

Page 10



• The "Fair Funding Review", (to determine a new formula methodology 
which will set each Local Authority's baseline funding level and creating 
"winners and losers") 

• The Retained Business Rates system, which involves the removal of all 
existing growth retained to date (amounting to £4m) and re-distributing that 
growth nationally according to relative need (rather than where it was 
generated). 

 
29. The Council's proposed Budget for 2024/25 will inevitably carry substantial risk 

seeking to accommodate the uncertain inflationary environment, the continuing 
pressures in Social Care and the increasing demands for Council Services 
arising from the "cost of living crisis", all making a compelling case for maintaining 
the minimum level of General Reserves to be held of £8m. 

 
30. During this unprecedented level of uncertainty, it is imperative that the Council 

continues to exercise financial restraint and manage its cost base carefully if it is 
to remain well placed to respond to any inflation and service demand volatility as 
well as the review of Local Government Funding.   Equally, the Council should 
seek to restore its General Reserves to a level of at least £12m, providing a more 
prudent level of "headroom" for risk against the minimum level of £8m. 
 

31. Capital funding is particularly constrained for 2024/25, previously relying on 
contributions from the Revenue Budget which have been unavailable due to the 
imperative to meet the substantial cost of inflationary pressures experienced 
during the year.  The Capital Programme makes proposals for new Capital 
Expenditure of £9.3m, of which just £1.4m is provided from Corporate Capital 
Resources with external funding amounting to £7.9m. 
 

32. Key additional investments proposed in this Capital Programme include: 
 

• £2.1m for Schools Capital Maintenance 

• £1.8m for adaptations to disabled residents’ homes to enable them to remain 
in their own homes 

• £0.8m for vehicle fleet replacement to electric vehicles 

• £0.5m provision for structure and drainage works associated with Osborne 
Steps 

• £0.4m for improvements at a council re-ablement facility providing support 
for older people to return to an independent life in their own homes 

• £0.4m for Highways Drainage schemes to reduce flooding 

• £0.4m for Rights of Way to renew the network and for reinstatement works 
after the recent flooding and storm events 

• £0.3m for Coastal Protection 

• £0.2m for a Place / Town Initiatives Fund. 
 

33. The key proposals within this report are for a balanced Budget for 2024/25 which 
provides for: 
 

Page 11



• The full financial impact of the extra-ordinary inflation and associated 
demand related cost pressures experienced over the past year and 
extending into 2024/25 

• £2.75m of savings to meet: 
i) The Council resolution of 22 February 2023 - £2m 
ii) The extra-ordinary Budget Pressures driven by the Social Care 

Funding Gap that the Council has been unable to mitigate 
iii) The financial impact of the Council's preference to increase the 

maximum support to the Council's Local Council Tax Support 
Scheme, offset by the removal of the Exceptional Hardship Fund - 
£0.25m 

• A Council Tax increase of 4.99% (2.0% of which is raised specifically to be 
passported to Adult Social Care) 

• Increased spending in Adult Social Care of £6.3m and increased spending 
in Children’s Services of £5.0m, (totalling £11.3m) being greater than the 
funding provided by the Adult Social Care precept and the additional Social 
Care Grant from Central Government (totalling £6.7m) 

• Draw down from General Reserves of £1.2m 

• A Covid Contingency of £5m, sufficient to support the Budget and Adult 
Social Care spending for the next 2 years 

• A forecast £3m Budget Deficit for the 3-year period to 2027/28 but which 
could vary between +/- £5m 

• A minimum savings requirement for 2025/26 of £1m but with any future 
year's savings beyond 2025/26 subject to review at next year's Annual 
Budget Meeting (February 2025) 

• "Structural Budget Balance" anticipated to be achieved in 2025/26 but 
predicated upon implementing a 100% Council Tax premium on second 
homes from April 2025 and the continuation of the "Island Funding" at £4m 
in total 

• New Capital Investment on the Island of £9.3m 

• A level of General Reserves over the period of the 3-year forecast of circa 
£11m (but recognising the substantial uncertainty faced by the Council over 
that period). 

 
34. Finally, the Council will continue to make the case to Central Government to fully 

recognise the additional costs of providing Council Services on the Isle of Wight 
due to its physical separation from the mainland.  The latest estimates made by 
the Council, based on national data sets, are that it costs an additional £23.7m 
to provide services across the Council's major spending areas compared to the 
average of the Council's statistical neighbours.  Government are yet to be 
convinced that the full extent of those additional costs arise as a direct result of 
physical separation.  The current uplift in funding of £4m therefore is considered 
by the Council as an initial starting point for future discussions with Government. 
 

35. A Cabinet Summary of these key points and others is set out on the next page: 

Page 12



 

CABINET SUMMARY 
 
 
Context 
 
 Since 2011/12, savings of £97m will have already been made (over 40% of controllable 

spend) due to the combination of government funding reductions and increasing 
demographic cost pressures 

 Adult Social Care and Children's Services represent almost 70% of controllable spend, 
provide services to the most vulnerable, experience the greatest cost pressures, are the 
hardest in which to manage demand and have historically received significant protection 
from savings - resulting in proportionally higher savings across other Council Services 

 Funding levels (e.g. Government Funding, Council Tax and Business Rates) have not 
kept pace with the cost pressures arising from prolonged levels of inflation and the 
ensuing "cost of living crisis" 

 The Council's Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) continues to deliver necessary 
savings through income generation, economic regeneration and efficiency measures 
before considering service reductions as a last resort 

 The Council continues to operate in a climate of uncertainty created by prolonged inflation 
and its volatility, cost of living related increases in demand for services and the 
forthcoming review of the Local Government Funding system.  

 
Revised Budget 2023/24 
 
 A Balanced Budget for 2023/24 but requiring a contribution from General Reserves of 

£0.9m 

 Provision for Covid costs and income losses as follows: 
o Adult Social Care - £2.1m 
o Leisure Services - £0.3m  

 Provision for forecast overspendings (excluding Covid related costs) as follows: 

o Children's Services - £3.9m 

o Adults Social Care - £3.3m 

Budget 2024/25 
 
 Planned in accordance with Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS), containing an 

interdependent package of measures to achieve financial balance and sustainability over 
the medium term (see next page)  

Page 13



 

CABINET SUMMARY (Continued) 
 

Budget 2024/25 (continued) 
 
 A Balanced Budget but requiring a withdrawal of £1.2m from General Reserves 

 Total Savings of £2.75m necessary to offset the extraordinary costs of inflation and 
demand related pressures and a reduction in Council Tax of £0.25m arising from the 
preference to increase Local Council Tax Support from a maximum of 70% to 75% 

 83% of the £2.75m Savings are delivered through Efficiencies and Income Generation 
and 17% achieved through service reductions. This analysis is presented as follows: 

 

 Additional Spending in Adult Social Care of £6.3m (to cover the uplift in the National 
Living Wage of 9.8% that will be passported to care providers as well as all other cost 
and inflationary pressures) 

 Additional Spending in Children's Services of £5.0m (to cover existing overspendings 
and other unavoidable cost pressures) 

 An inflationary uplift for all Services to maintain "steady state" provision amounting to 
£2.9m (excluding Adult Social Care and Children's Services above) 

 Additional Government Funding of £6.8m for 2024/25, with £4.7m provided for Social 
Care, £3.0m of additional Island Funding but a cut for all other services of £0.9m (plus 
no funding for inflation for other services which is running at 4%) 

 Creation of a £0.25m Community Capacity and Resilience Fund 

 A Council Tax increase of 4.99%, of which: 
o 2.99% is for general council services (at lower than inflation which peaked at 8.7% 

and is currently at 4%) 
o 2.0% (amounting to £2.0m) is to be passported directly to Adult Social Care 

 An overall Social Care Funding Gap of £4.6m between Adult Social Care and Children's 
Services unavoidable costs of £11.3m and the funding available of £6.7m (i.e. 2% Adult 
Social Care Council Tax Precept of £2.0m plus additional Social Care Grants of £4.7).   

 A Covid Contingency of £5m, sufficient to support the Budget and Adult Social Care 
spending for the next 2 years 

 General Reserves falling to £10.9m. 

Efficiency
69%

Addi�onal 
Income

14%

Service 
Reduc�on

17%

Type of Saving

Page 14



 

CABINET SUMMARY (Continued) 
 

Future Forecast - 2025/26 to 2027/28 
 
 The Council must be narrowly, if not singularly, focussed on addressing its medium term 

Budget Deficit if it is to plan responsibly for the future delivery of the Councils' statutory 
duties  

 The new forecast for the new 3 Year Period to 2027/28 of a £3m Deficit but predicated on: 
o The Budget proposals in 2024/25 for £2.75m savings and a 4.99% increase in Council 

Tax 
o Continuation of the additional "Island Funding" award of £3m p.a. (£4m p.a. in total) 
o Council Tax increases of 4.99% per annum, representing 2.99% for general purposes 

and 2% for Adult Social Care 
o Adoption of a 100% Council Tax premium for second homes amounting to £4.2m from 

April 2025  
 A minimum Budget Savings amount for 2025/26 of £1m 
 Indicative Budget Savings of a further £1m p.a. for 2026/27 and 2027/28 
 Potential for the "Forecast Deficit" of £3m to vary between +/- £5m due to the 

considerable uncertainty associated with inflation, unavoidable cost pressures 
(particularly in Care Services), business rate appeals and the forthcoming review of Local 
Government Funding   

 Future forecasts provide for some modest contributions towards future necessary Capital 
Investment requirements but do not provide for the replenishment of the Transformation 
Reserve, making the recommendations to use any additional funding received / year end 
savings for these purposes absolutely critical to the success of the MTFS   

 General Reserves are maintained over the period at not lower than £10.8m (and assume 
the £1.0m p.a. savings are achieved), providing a very modest level of headroom to be able 
to respond to the risks associated with the future cost and funding uncertainty 

 Balanced approach to savings if the forecast proves to be too pessimistic or too optimistic.  
With General Reserves at proposed levels, savings of £1.0m p.a. ensure that for any 
improvement in the forecast, the Council has not prematurely made a level of savings that 
could have been avoided and for any deterioration, good progress towards the necessary 
savings will be made. 

 
Reserves 
 
 The minimum level of Reserves required by the Council is £8.0m based on its risk profile, 

and crucially the £2.75m savings proposed within this report.  
 If General Reserves fall below £8.0m, a S.114 notice is likely to be served 
 A draw from General Reserves in 2023/24 of £0.9m 
 A draw down on General Reserves in 2024/25 of £1.2m 
 Reserves in 2024/25 reduced to £10.9m (providing "headroom" of just £2.9m above 

minimum levels) and remaining broadly constant by 2027/28 but at a time when the risks 
of the Fair Funding Review and Business Rate "reset" will arise 

 Planned Reserves at £10.9m for 2024/25 represent just 2.5% of total gross expenditure 
 Underlying General Reserves over the medium term at £10.8m are extremely modest. 

Page 15



 
  

CABINET SUMMARY (Continued) 
 
Capital Programme 
 
 Total proposed new Capital Investment of £9.3m including: 

 
o £2.1m for Schools Capital Maintenance 
o £1.8m for adaptations to disabled residents’ homes to enable them to remain in their 

own homes 
o £0.8m for vehicle fleet replacement to electric vehicles 
o £0.5m provision for structure and drainage works associated with Osborne Steps 
o £0.4m for improvements at a council re-ablement facility providing support for older 

people to return to an independent life in their own homes 
o £0.4m for Highways Drainage schemes to reduce flooding 
o £0.4m for Rights of Way to renew the network and for reinstatement works after the 

recent flooding and storm events 
o £0.3m for Coastal Protection 
o £0.2m for a Place / Town Initiatives Fund£0.2m for a Place / Town Initiatives Fund. 
o  

 Looking forward, there remains a substantial "Capital Gap" between funding and 
Capital Investment needs. 
 

Conclusion 
 
 Balanced Budgets for 2023/24 and 2024/25 but with a "structural gap" which is 

not resolved until 2025/26 
 Financial volatility (inflation and demand for services) is likely to continue into 2024/25 
 The increase in funding from the "Island Funding" of £3m and increase in Council Tax 

from the second homes premium of £4.2m has substantially improved the Council's 
financial position and mitigated the scale of the future Budget Deficit 

 The Council's financial health is currently fragile but stable and the proposals provide for 
a level of financial resilience that will enable the Council to be able to respond in all but 
exceptional circumstances  

 Future uncertainty for Local Government funding remains a substantial risk. 
 The Council will continue to pursue additional funding from the Government to recognise 

the additional costs of providing services due to physical separation. 

Page 16



BACKGROUND 
 
36. The primary purpose of this report is to set the Council's overall Budget for the 

forthcoming year 2024/25 and the associated level of Council Tax necessary to 
fund that Budget.  

 
37. The report makes recommendations on the level of Council spending for 2024/25 

and the level of Council Tax in the context of the Council's Medium Term 
Financial Strategy (MTFS). 

 
38. The recommended Budget for 2024/25 has been prepared on the basis of the 

following: 
 
• The requirement to meet savings amounting to £2.75m, that being £0.75m 

greater that the Council resolution of 22 February 2023 that set an overall 
savings requirement of £2.0m; the additional savings being necessary to: 

i) Meet the substantial cost pressures being driven by extra-ordinary 
levels of inflation and service demand 

ii) The additional cost of the Local Council Tax Support scheme 
iii) The imperative to minimise the Council's "structural budget deficit" for 

2024/25 caused by i) and ii) above. 

• An increase in the level of Council Tax for 2024/25 for general purposes of 
2.99% 

• The flexibility to increase the level of Council Tax for an "Adult Social Care 
Precept", within the limits set by Central Government at 2.0%, and the direct 
passporting of that additional funding to Adult Social Care to provide for 
otherwise unfunded cost pressures including the 9.8% increase in the 
National Living Wage.  

 
39. This report also provides a comprehensive revision of the Council's rolling 3 year 

future financial forecast for the new period 2025/26 to 2027/28 (i.e. compared to 
the previous forecast covering 2024/25 to 2026/27, this forecast now replaces 
the forecast for the previous 3 year period). 
 

40. The new forecast considers the future outlook for both spending and funding, 
and in that context, wider recommendations are made regarding the levels of 
reserves to be maintained and additional contributions to the Capital Programme 
in order to meet the Council's aspirations for the Island as well as maintaining 
the Council's overall financial resilience throughout this uncertain period. 
 

41. In particular, this report sets out the following: 
 

(a) The impact of the dramatic change in the financial environment over the past 
2 years and how that legacy translates into the financial challenges now 
presented for 2024/25 and beyond 

(b) A brief summary of the MTFS for achieving the necessary savings as 
approved in the report to Council in October 2016 

(c) The Revised Revenue Budget for the current year 2023/24 

(d) The Local Government Finance Settlement for 2024/25 

Page 17



(e) The Business Rate income for 2024/25 and future years 

(f) The Council Tax Base and recommended Council Tax for 2024/25 

(g) The proposed Revenue Budget for 2024/25 

(h) The financial forecast for the new 3 year period and consequent Savings 
Requirements for 2025/26, 2026/27 and 2027/28 

(i) Estimated General Reserves over the period 2023/24 to 2027/28 

(j) The forecast Collection Fund balance as at 31 March 2024 for both Council 
Tax and Business Rates 

(k) The detailed indicative savings (Appendix 3) that could be made by each 
Portfolio in meeting its overall savings amount in order to provide the Council 
with the assurance necessary to approve the recommended savings amount 
for each Portfolio 

(l) The statement of the Section 151 Officer on the robustness of the budget in 
compliance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003. 

(m) The Capital Programme for 2023/24 to 2028/29. 
 
 

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY (MTFS)  
 
42. The Council approved a Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) in October 

2016 to guide the Council towards financial sustainability. 
 

43. The Council has been required to make £97m in savings, efficiencies and service 
reductions (representing over 40% of controllable spending) over the past 13 
years in order to balance the Budget, ensuring that spending remains in line with 
income and funding levels. 

 
44. The financial environment has changed dramatically over the last 2 years 

characterised by a fixed Local Government financial envelope set by the 
Government in their Comprehensive Spending Review 2021 (CSR 21) up to the 
period ending 2024/25 and elevated and prolonged levels of inflation that CSR 
21 did not foresee.  The enduring impact of elevated inflation has led to 
unavoidable and unplanned cost increases in the delivery of Council Services as 
well as a "cost of living crisis" for residents which, in turn, has increased the 
demand for Council Services. 

 
45. During 2023/24 and continuing into 2024/25, the Council continues to experience 

the "hang-over" of the heightened levels of inflation of the past 2 years, causing 
the Council to now suffer a "structural deficit" as it enters 2024/25. 

 
46. Accordingly, the Council's MTFS is designed to resolutely maximise the 

deployment of the resources that it does have (Revenue, Capital, Property and 
Staff) towards driving additional income / funding and cost savings to secure 
Services for the future. 

 
47. The overall aim of the MTFS is illustrated on the next page: 

Page 18



 

48. The 6 Themes of the MTFS are described below.  

 
49. The themes within the MTFS have been designed as a comprehensive and 

complementary package of measures to support the Council to navigate through 
the financial challenge that it faces.  Theme 1, "Create Financial and Operating 
Capacity to Transform" remains the critical building block to enable all other 
activities to take place.  Without financial resilience and sufficient general 
reserves, the Council will not be able to: 

 
i) Take a proportionate and managed approach to the implementation of the 

Council's Savings Requirements and the "smoothing out" of savings over 
longer time periods will not be an available option resulting in larger and 
deeper service reductions 

ii) Cushion the impact on services from any "financial shocks" 
iii) Take advantage of opportunities that may arise (e.g. additional external 

funding) which requires a Council contribution and would contribute to the 
future financial sustainability of the Council.   

 
50. Without financial resilience, the remainder of the Council's MTFS is compromised 

and the ability of the Council to provide sustainable public services in the future 
is placed at risk.  

"In Year" expenditure matches "In Year" 
income over the medium term whilst 

regenerating the Island Economy and 
providing essential Value for Money 

services for our Businesses and Residents 

SHORT TERM 
 

Theme 1  Create Financial and Operating Capacity to Transform 
Theme 2 Increasing Efficiency and Effectiveness 
 

SHORT TO MEDIUM TERM 
 

Theme 3 Entrepreneurial, Commercial and Collaborative Activities 
(with managed risk) 

Theme 4 Withdraw from or offer Minimal Provision for Low Impact 
Services 

Theme 5 Improving the Island Economy  
 

MEDIUM TO LONGER TERM 
 
Theme 6 Public Service Transformation 
 

 
 

Page 19



 
REVISED BUDGET 2023/24 

 
51. The Original Revenue Budget approved by the Council in February 2023 was 

£178,802,800 with no reliance on a draw down from General Reserves indicating 
a "structurally balanced budget". 
 

52. The Cabinet has received regular quarterly Budget Monitoring reports on the 
2023/24 Budget throughout the year.  Those forecasts have consistently reported 
that the Budget remains under pressure with Adults and Children's care services 
showing signs of financial distress amounting to £9.1m. These cost pressures 
are being compensated mainly by additional savings and interest income from 
the Council’s Treasury Management Activities.  The current forecast as at the 
end of quarter three indicates a forecast overspend of £5.3m and a balanced 
budget at year end can only be achieved by:  

 
i) Drawing down from the Council's Covid Contingency to accommodate the 

Covid related additional costs and income losses associated with the 
following: 

(a) Adult Social Care residential care - £2.1m 
(b) Leisure Services income losses - £0.3m  

ii) Relying on the Use of the Corporate Contingency of £2.0m 
iii) Drawing on General Reserves by £0.9m. 
 

53. The legacy impact of the prolonged period of extraordinary levels of inflation and 
ensuing "cost of living" crisis have been the defining factors affecting the Budget 
in the current year and will continue to do so into 2024/25.  Whilst the additional 
costs have been substantial, the combination of improved returns from the 
Council's Treasury Management activities plus the funding provided by the 
Council's Covid Contingency and Corporate Contingency has minimised the 
amount required from General Reserves to balance the Budget for 2023/24. 
 

54. The Original Budget has now been comprehensively revised, now requiring a 
contribution from General Reserves of £928,400 versus the budgeted 
contribution to the General Reserve of £7,300 a difference of £935,700.  

 
55. The proposed Revised Revenue Budget of £178,988,200 is set out in the 

General Fund Summary (Appendix 1). 
 
 
REVENUE BUDGET 2024/25 
 
Overall Strategy 
 
56. The overall aim of the Council's Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) is to 

match "In Year" spending with "In Year" income and funding over the medium 
term with the use of General Reserves to "smooth out" any necessary 
fluctuations between years.  This is consistent with being a financially sustainable 
Council providing quality public services.   

 

Page 20



57. The Council's MTFS, contains an interdependent package of measures to 
achieve financial balance and sustainability over the medium term which 
includes: 

 
• Targeted draw down of the £40m "over provision" for debt repayments over 

a 5 year period, now complete 

• Lobbying Government for additional Island Funding to reflect the additional 
costs associated with providing Council Services due to physical separation  

• Savings levels following a "smooth profile" (facilitated by drawing / 
contributing to General Reserves) to enable necessary savings to be 
implemented in a managed way 

• Gradual repair of the Council's General Reserves to levels that can provide 
financial resilience for uncertainty and potential "financial shocks" 

• A financial framework that supports responsible spending and removes 
financial obstacles to the delivery of strong Spend to Save schemes.  
 

58. The Council's approved MTFS and Savings Requirements accommodates the 
repair of its General Reserves over time.  It is vital that the Council maintains its 
General Reserves at the levels set out in this report if it is to continue to have the 
facility to "smooth out" necessary savings over time.   

 
59. General Reserves are forecast to remain relatively constant over the next 4 years 

with just a modest level of "headroom" of £2.8m above the minimum levels.  The 
Council should take every opportunity to restore its "headroom" to £4m or more 
to guard against known uncertainty and financial shocks such as those 
experienced over the past 2 years, and which rapidly saw the Council experience 
over £30m of unplanned financial pressures.  Underlying General Reserves at 
£10.8m over the medium term are extremely modest. 
 

60. The Administration undertakes an annual Budget Consultation, using it to inform 
spending and savings priorities as well as its Council Tax proposals. 

 
 

Budget Consultation 
 

61. The Council published its online budget consultation survey on 18 December 
2023 which closed on 26 January 2024 with 824 responses (1,092 responses 
last year).  
 

62. A summary of the results is set out below and has been considered by the 
Cabinet in setting out their Revenue Budget, Council Tax and Capital Investment 
proposals: 
 
• Council Tax Increase for General Purposes: 

o 62% of respondents opted for an increase of 1%, 2%, 3% or more 
than 3%  

o The most popular increase was for a 3% increase (25% of 
respondents)   

• Support for an Adult Social Care Precept on council tax of 2%: 

Page 21



o 45% of respondents supported raising a levy of 2% 

• Fees & Charges for Specific Services: 
o 71% of respondents would prefer to see an increase in charges for 

services to maintain them.  The most popular choice was for a modest 
increase (36% of respondents)  

• Priorities for remaining funds: 
o 37% ranked ensuring older people and vulnerable adults are looked 

after and supported to live independently as their priority. 
o The second ranked priority was maintaining our roads, parks and 

open spaces (13%)  

• Spending on "one-off" projects: 
o 63% ranked investing in sea defences and flood protection within their 

top priorities. 
o 48% ranked improving the road network within their top priorities. 

 
 
Funding - Summary of the Local Government Finance Settlement  

 
63. The Local Government Finance Settlement is the term used to describe the main 

non-ring-fenced Revenue and Capital grant funding allocations from 
Government. 
 

64. In overall terms the Local Government Settlement has provided additional grant 
funding in 2024/25 of £6.8m as follows: 
 
i) Increase in Social Care Grant (for Adults and Children) - £3.7m 
ii) Social Care market sustainability & improvement - £0.4m 
iii) Support for hospital discharge - £0.6m 
iv) Assumed increase in Island Funding - £3.0m 
v) Reduction in Grants for all other Services £0.9m 
 
Note: 
 
The Local Government Finance Settlement includes £1.6m of additional Social Care 
Funding and £3.0m of additional "Island Funding" for the Isle of Wight Council relating the 
announcement of an additional £600m for Local Authorities made by the Secretary of State 
on 24th January 2024   
 

65. Set against the new funding of £4.7m of funding from Social Care (Adults & 
Children) are the existing and known Budget Pressures across those Services of 
£11.3m, leaving a Social Care Funding Gap of £6.6m.  Therefore, further funding 
from the Adult Social Care Precept of £2m will also be required to narrow the gap 
between these cost pressures and the funding available. 

 
66. Other features of the Settlement include: 

 
• A 1 year Settlement for 2024/25 

Page 22



• No increase in the Improved Better Care Fund, therefore remaining "cash 
flat" 

• Council Tax increase thresholds of: 
o 3.0% or £5 for Shire District Councils 
o 3.0% for Upper Tier and Unitary Councils 
o 2.0% for Adult Social Care (Upper Tier Authorities only) 
o 3.0% for Fire & Rescue Authorities 
o £13 for Police and Crime Commissioners 

• No announcement regarding the future of the Household Support Fund 
although it is anticipated that it will be tapered out over 2024/25. 

 
67. It has now been 8 years since the Government first announced that it would 

consult and implement a Local Government Funding Review.   The Funding 
Review has been further delayed and is not expected to be implemented until 
2026/27 at the earliest.  The Funding Review covers the following: 

 
• The "Fair Funding Review", (to determine a new formula methodology which 

will set each Local Authority's baseline funding level and creating "winners 
and losers") 

• The Retained Business Rates system which involves the removal of all 
existing growth retained to date (amounting to £4m) and re-distributing that 
growth nationally according to relative need (rather than where it was 
generated) and in accordance with the "Fair Funding Review formula 
(above). 

 
68. Whilst the Local Government Finance Settlement is a significant factor in 

determining the Council's overall financial position and therefore any necessary 
savings, other significant factors that will affect the Council's future Savings 
Requirements include Business Rates income, Council Tax income, inflation, 
interest rates and any new unfunded burdens passed down from Government. 
These are described in the paragraphs that follow. 
 
Retained Business Rates - 2024/25 & Future Forecasts 

 
69. The Retained Business Rates system is complex and subject to a significant 

degree of inherent risk.  The current national system is characterised by a 
complex formula which includes the following: 

 
i) Retention of 50% of all business rates received and which is affected by the 

value of successful appeals, the number of mandatory reliefs (e.g. charitable 
relief) and the overall collection rate (i.e. how much is uncollectable and 
written off) 

ii) Increased by a fixed amount "top up" which increases annually by the rate of 
inflation 

iii) Compensation through S.31 Grants for national government initiatives which 
have the effect of reducing Business Rates to the Local Authority such as 
business rate capping for small businesses 

Page 23



iv) A "safety net" set at 7.5% below a pre-determined baseline below which 
retained Business Rates will not fall. 

 
70. In total, for 2024/25, Retained Business Rates are estimated at £43.8m1, which 

includes a deficit relating to previous years of £1.6m arising mainly from higher 
than anticipated successful business rate appeals. 
 

71. Future years' forecasts of Business Rates are limited to inflation related uplifts 
and with flat growth in the business rate base.      

 
72. The estimation of Retained Business Rates receipts is extremely complex, with 

the potential to be volatile and with many of the factors outside this Council’s 
control.  In particular, the Valuation Office Agency will both determine whether a 
rating appeal is successful, and the level of reduction granted with the Council 
having no right of challenge.  To help mitigate against this risk, the Council 
maintains a modest reserve to provide the Council with a degree of funding 
stability in the event of fluctuations within and between years. 

 
73. Despite the complications and risks associated with appeals, there remains the 

financial incentive within the system for many Local Authorities (including the Isle 
of Wight Council2) to generate economic growth and job creation.  Irrespective 
of the financial incentive, the Council's Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 
is aimed at improving the Island Economy to generate growth and productivity 
(which improves the Council's Business Rate Base) as well as reducing the 
demand for Council Services generally. 

 
74. From 2026/27, there is expected to be a review of the Business Rate Retention 

Scheme, the details of which are not yet known.  The review will include a "Reset" 
which will remove all current business rate growth currently being enjoyed by 
authorities and which for the Council amounts to £4m. 

 
75. The Business Rate growth enjoyed by all councils will be removed from councils, 

aggregated and then re-distributed based on "Need" through the Fair Funding 
review.  If the Council's "Relative Needs" have increased by more than the 
average of all other Councils, then the Council will be a "winner " in terms of the 
re-distribution and vice versa.  
 
 
Council Tax - 2024/25 & Future Forecasts 

 
Collection Fund Balance (Council Tax Element) 2023/24 

 
76. The Collection Fund is the account into which paid amounts are collected in 

respect of Council Tax, and out of which are paid the Council Tax precepts to: 
 

• Isle of Wight Council, including town and parish precepts (85.3% share) 

• Hampshire Police & Crime Commissioner (11.1% share) 

 
 
1 Includes Retained Business Rates of £17.5m, "Top Up" of £12.8m, S.31 Grants of £15.0m and a Collection Fund deficit of 
£1.6m. 
 
2 Applies to Local Authorities that, in general, remain above the safety net threshold over time. 

Page 24



• Hampshire & Isle of Wight Fire & Rescue Authority (3.6% share). 
 

In the event that actual Council Tax income receivable is different from the 
estimated income (informed by the calculation of the Council Tax Base) upon 
which the precepts are based, then a surplus or deficit will arise. 

 
77. For 2023/24, it is estimated that the Collection Fund will be in surplus by 

£1,483,500.  The Isle of Wight Council element of that is £1,265,500.  This 
surplus is factored into the Council Tax income estimates for 2024/25. 
 
 
Council Tax Amount 2024/25 

 
78. Council Tax is expected to represent 54% of the Council's total revenue funding 

next year and as Government funding has reduced, this has become an 
increasingly more important and dependent funding source for the Council. 

 
79. Council Tax for the average Council Tax payer on the Isle of Wight (Band C) 

currently amounts to £1,910.66 (excluding parish precepts), of which £1,615.65 
(84.6%) is the Isle of Wight Council element.   Not all residents are subject to the 
full amount of Council Tax with many benefitting from exemptions and discounts 
(such as the single person discount) and a significant number of residents 
receiving Local Council Tax Support bringing the level of Council Tax payable to 
an assessed affordable level.  After discounts, exemptions and Local Council 
Tax support is taken into account, circa. 64% of all properties are subject to the 
full level of Council Tax. 

 
80. The Local Government Finance Settlement for 2024/25 confirmed a Council Tax 

increase limit for general purposes (i.e. referendum threshold).  Any increase 
beyond the 2.99% threshold can only be implemented following a "Yes" vote in 
a local referendum. 
 

81. The additional flexibility to apply a Council Tax increase for the Adult Social Care 
Precept has been provided in recognition of the extreme cost pressures facing 
Adult Social Care, both through the increase in the National Living Wage (which 
has increased by 9.8% and affects the Council's contracts with Care Providers 
for Adults) as well as the elevated levels of inflation generally and the 
demographic pressures from general aging and a "living longer" population. 
 

82. Given the extraordinary demand and inflationary pressures on the Council and 
having due regard to the results of the Budget Consultation, it is proposed that: 
 
i) The Council Tax for General Purposes be increased by 2.99% for 2024/25, 

representing 93p per week for a Band C tax payer and yielding £2.9m 
ii) Adult Social Care precept be increased by 2.0% for 2024/25, representing 

62p per week for a Band C tax payer and yielding £2m to be passported 
direct to Adult Social Care. 

 
83. It is vital that the flexibility of the Adult Social Care (ASC) Precept is taken for the 

following reasons: 
 

Page 25



• The Service is already experiencing Budget Pressures in the current year of 
£5.4m 

• The cost and demand related pressures for 2024/25 (including the National 
Living Wage increase of 9.8%) amount to £6.3m 

• Additional funding from Government to cover both Adults & Children's 
Services unavoidable cost pressures results in an overall funding shortfall of 
£6.6m 3 

• The alternative to not applying the ASC Precept would be to increase the 
level of savings required by the Service, presenting risks to the wider health 
system on the Island. 

 
84. The Council could elect not to increase the level of Council Tax by 2.99% but if 

it chose to do so, would need to identify additional savings of £1m for every 1% 
of Council Tax foregone if it is to achieve a Balanced Budget.  Over the course 
of the Council's future forecast, a 1% reduction in Council Tax would equate to a 
cumulative loss of funding amounting to £4.3m. 
 
 
Council Tax Base 2024/25 

 
85. The Council Tax Base (i.e. the number of Band D equivalent properties paying 

the full Council Tax) has been determined as 54,407.3 for 2024/25. 
 

86. The Council Tax Base has been determined at a level that accommodates the 
Council's decision to increase the maximum level of support for working age 
cases to 75% (from the current maximum level of 70%).   The financial impact of 
this is to add £0.25m to the Isle of Wight Council's Budget Deficits and to reduce 
Council Tax income to other preceptors by £66,000 (Police, Fire and Town & 
Parish Councils).  This in turn may result in those preceptors increasing their 
level of Council Tax to compensate for their reduced income. 

 
87. In acceding to the Council's decision to increase the thresholds in the Local 

Council Tax Support Scheme, the Cabinet have proposed to extend the scale of 
its originally planned savings from £2.5m to £2.75m. 

 
 
Total Council Tax Income 2024/25 & Future Years 

 
88. Considering the Council Tax increase, Council Tax Base and surplus on the 

Collection Fund, the total Council Tax income for 2024/25 is estimated at 
£105,095,855. 

 
89. As Government funding reduces, rises in Council Tax income are fundamental 

to the Council's future financial position and therefore the future sustainability of 
Council Services. The Council's Medium Term Financial Forecast (MTFS) 
assumes that Council Tax Income will rise to £124,855,524 by 2027/28 and is 
based on the following assumptions: 

 

 
 
3 Children's Services cost pressures £5.0m, Adults Social Care cost pressures £6.3m less increase in Social Care Grants £4.7m 

Page 26



• Annual increase in the amount of Council Tax of 4.99% for 2024/25 and each 
year thereafter (including 2% p.a. for the Adult Social Care Precept) 

• An increase of £4.2m due to the adoption of a policy to introduce a 100% 
Council Tax Premium on Second Homes from April 2025. 

 
 

Funding Summary 
 
90. Over the following 3 year period of the Council's forecast, funding is anticipated 

to rise by 12.2% (or an average of 3.9% p.a.4), reflecting: 
 
• Increases in Council Tax of 4.99% per annum and the introduction of a 100% 

Premium on Second Homes 

• Government Funding rising in line with inflation 

• Inflation related rises in Business Rate income. 
 
 
Spending Proposals 2024/25 

 
90 In the current financial year, several Portfolios are exhibiting signs of financial 

stress largely relating to the effects of the high inflation / high demand 
environment, the impact of which is expected to endure into 2024/25 and beyond.  
At the mid-point of the year (September 2023) the Consumer Price Index (CPI), 
the main measure of inflation, was 6.7% versus the Office of Budget 
Responsibilities central assumption of 5.5% and pay increased by 6.6% versus 
a budget assumption of 4.0%.  Inflation and demand in the Care Services 
specifically were at levels significantly greater than budgeted.   

 
91. These pressures emanating in 2023/24 and their ongoing impact plus all other 

inflationary and unavoidable Budget Pressures have been factored into the 
Budget for 2024/25.  The Budget proposal for 2024/25 represents an increase in 
spending of £16.3m over the Original Budget for 2023/24 and includes additional 
costs, inflationary pressures and savings as follows: 
 
• Additional Spending in Adult Social Care of £6.3m (to cover the uplift in the 

National Living Wage of 9.8% that will be used to support care providers as 
well as all other cost and inflationary pressures) 

• Additional Spending in Children's Services of £5.0m (to cover inflation, 
existing overspendings on placements) 

• Other cost and inflationary pressures across all other Services to maintain 
"steady state" provision amounting £8.2m (excluding Adults & Children's 
Services above) 

• Other unavoidable net reductions - £0.4m 

• Budget Savings of £2.75m.  
 

 
 

 
4 3.9% increases on a compounded basis equates to a total increase of 12.2% over 3 years 

Page 27



92. Other Budget items are set out under the headings below: 
      
Revenue Contributions to Capital 

 
93. Due to the scale of the demand and inflationary pressures that the Council are 

experiencing, the Council has been unable to afford any contribution towards 
new Capital Investment either from the 2023/24 Budget or from the 2024/25 
Budget.  Consequently, the Cabinet has had to restrict its ambitions to essential 
Capital Investment only that is required to continue to deliver the current level of 
services on a sustainable basis.  A modest £9.3m of new Capital Investment is 
proposed.    
 

94. Budget affordability constraints are expected to continue in the future.  To 
address both the Cabinet’s aspirations and the Council's future statutory 
obligations, future Revenue Contributions to the Capital Programme will 
inevitably be required.   Whilst bidding for external capital funding will always 
form part of the strategy to fund Capital Investment requirements, not all 
investments will be either eligible or successful.   

 
95. Given that this Capital Investment is necessary for the Council's statutory 

obligations, support to transform the Island's economic potential as well as the 
Cabinet’s priorities (particularly to provide housing affordable to Island residents), 
it is vital that the Council makes provision for Revenue Contributions to Capital 
wherever possible.  To fulfil even some of the future obligations and aspirations, 
further revenue contributions to capital will be required in future years and will 
need to be embedded within the Council's financial planning process. 

 
96. It is vital therefore that the "standing recommendation" continues that any 

savings arising at the year-end be transferred to Capital Resources to provide 
funding for known and potential future commitments. 
 
Transfer to the Transformation Fund 
 

97. Similarly, due to affordability constraints, there is no proposed transfer to the 
Transformation Fund either from the Revised Budget 2023/24 or the Budget 
2024/25.  A withdrawal from the Transformation Reserve is proposed for 2024/25 
in the sum of £0.25m to create a Community Capacity and Resilience Fund.  
Ultimately, this is anticipated to be transformative for the local community, 
providing self-sustaining community-based services and to address gaps in 
services that currently exist.  In turn, it is expected that such prevention activity 
will reduce the financial burden on Council Services in the future.   

 
98. The overall aim of the Community Capacity and Resilience Fund is described 

above, and the detailed design, eligibility and evaluation criteria will be the 
subject of a separate report to Cabinet in 2024/25. 

 
99. Looking forward, replenishment of the Transformation Reserve is vital if it is to 

continue in its capacity to be a vehicle to enable Spend to Save and Invest to 
Save initiatives to contribute towards the delivery of savings in the future.  The 
Reserve currently contains a modest uncommitted balance of £3.2m and 
historically sums of between £1m to £2m annually have been required to support 
the delivery of budget savings and the genuine transformation of services. 
 

Page 28



100. In the absence of a planned programme of replenishment, it is important that the 
"standing recommendation" continues to be adopted to enable savings arising at 
the year-end be made available to "top up" the Reserve.   

 
 
Savings Proposals 2024/25 

 
101. As in previous years, the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) has 

advocated an "Avoidance to Cuts" approach wherever possible.  The Cabinet 
are committed to maximising this approach and with a very strong emphasis on 
efficiency and income generation.  The exceptional circumstances currently 
being experienced have required a heavier reliance of service reductions for the 
coming year. 

 
102. In overall terms, the proposed £2.75m of savings are illustrated below with 83% 

of all savings expected to be derived from Additional Income and Efficiency 
Savings: 

 

 
 
 

 
103. A summary of the overall total savings proposals by Portfolio, is set out in the 

table on the next page. 
  

Efficiency
69%

Additional 
Income

14%

Service 
Reduction

17%

Type of Saving

Page 29



 

Portfolio 
Controllable 

Budget  Savings Proposal 

£ £ % 
Adult Social Care & Public Health* 57,782,000 919,900 1.6% 
Children's Services, Education & Corporate 
Functions* 41,238,000 207,000 0.5% 

Climate Change, Biosphere & Waste 6,777,000 68,000 1.0% 

Deputy Leader - Housing & Finance 8,292,000 107,100 1.3% 

Economy, Regeneration, Culture & Leisure 3,052,000 24,000 0.8% 

Leader - Transport Infrastructure, Highways PFI 
and Transport Strategy, Strategic Oversight and 
External Partnerships** 

13,658,000 1,167,000 8.5% 

Planning, Coastal Protection & Flooding 2,361,000 0 0.0% 

Regulatory Services, Community Protection & ICT 11,340,000 257,000 2.3% 

Grand Total 144,500,000 2,750,000 1.9% 
    

* Excludes the additional funding passported through to Adult Social Care of £6.3m (which if 
included would result in an overall increase of 9.4%) and the additional funding for Children's 
Services, Education & Lifelong Skills of £5.0m (which if included would result in an overall increase 
of 15.3%) 

** Excludes £19.4m of PFI grant funding, on a gross expenditure basis the saving amounts to 3.5% 
 

 
104. Inevitably, there are a number of financial risks contained within the proposals 

for making savings of the scale of £2.75m on the back of making over £97m in 
savings over the past 13 years.  The risks are unavoidable.  For those risks with 
the highest likely impact, such as Children's Services and Adult Social Care, 
mitigation strategies and contingency provisions have been made.   

 
105. It is important to note that the Council's responsibility is to set the overall Budget 

of the Council and determine the individual Budget for each Portfolio / Service.  
It is not the responsibility of the Council to approve the detailed savings that need 
to be made for the Portfolio / Service to meet its own Budget.  The Council do 
need to have the confidence that the recommended savings for each Portfolio 
are deliverable and what the likely impact of delivering those savings might be.  
Indicative savings that are likely to be necessary in delivering the overall Portfolio 
savings are attached at Appendix 3 and whilst the detailed savings are not a 
matter for the Council to decide, they are presented to inform the decision of 
Council relating to the savings to be made by each Portfolio / Service. 

 
106. For savings proposals that require consultation, the actual method of 

implementation or their distributional effect will not be determined until the results 
of that consultation have been fully considered.  Following consultation, the 
relevant Portfolio Holder may alter, amend or substitute any of the indicative 
savings proposal(s) set out in Appendix 3 with alternative proposal(s) amounting 
to the same value. 

Page 30



 
 

Summary of Proposed Revenue Budget 2024/25 
 

107. The proposed Budget for 2024/25 has been prepared to include the following: 
 

Spending 2024/25: 

• Cost and Inflationary Pressures of £19.5m 

• No Revenue Contribution to the Capital Programme  

• The £2.75m savings proposals as set out in Appendix 3. 

• A Community Capacity and Resilience Fund of £0.25m anticipated to be 
transformative for the local community 

• Core contingency provision to cover known and anticipated financial risks of 
the Council amounting to £4.2m, especially those relating to increases in 
demand for Adult Social Care and Children’s Services, Inflation volatility, 
Emergency Repairs risks and the delivery of budget savings more generally. 

 
Funding 2024/25: 

• An increase in funding from Government of £6.8m with £4.7m provided for 
Social Care and assuming an increase of £3.0m for "Island Funding" but a 
cut for all other services of £0.9m  

• Underlying Business Rate income for 2024/25 is an increase of 9.7% largely 
reflecting an inflationary uplift 

• An overall increase in Council Tax of 4.99%, yielding £4.9m 

• An increase in the Council Tax base equivalent 320.3 Band D properties 
resulting in additional Council Tax income £0.6m 

• A "one-off" surplus on the Council Tax Collection Fund of £1.3m 

• A "one-off" deficit on the Business Rate Collection Fund of £1.6m 
 

108. The combination of the spending and funding proposals in the proposed Budget 
for 2024/25 above combine to provide a balanced, but not "structurally balanced" 
Budget for 2024/25 which requires a withdrawal General Reserves of £1.2m. 
 

109. The proposed Budget for 2024/25, including the main changes described above 
results in net spending of £195,101,200. This amounts to a net increase in 
spending of £16,298,400 or 9.1% over the Original Budget 2023/24 and is 
recommended for approval.  
 

 
REVENUE FORECASTS 2025/26 TO 2027/28 

 
110. A new medium term forecast has now been completed and "rolled on" a further 

year to cover the period 2025/26 to 2027/28. All of the financial assumptions 
have been comprehensively revised and a savings requirement for the new 
period determined. 
 

Page 31



111. The previous medium term forecast estimated that savings of £6.0m would be 
required across the 3 year period 2024/25 to 2026/27. The extraordinary level of 
inflationary and demand pressures experienced throughout the current year 
flowing through into 2024/25 and the Social Care Funding Gap have naturally 
caused the forecast deficit to increase but this has been mitigated by the 
additional award of "Island Funding", the increase in Council Tax from the second 
homes premium and the additional proposed savings of £0.75m beyond the 
originally anticipated £2.0m. 

 
112. The new medium term forecast comprehensively revises all cost and funding 

assumptions and incorporates a forecast for the additional year 2027/28.  
Crucially, the forecast includes: 

 
i) Budget Savings in 2024/25 of £2.75m 
i) A Council Tax increases of 4.99% for 2024/25 
ii) That the Council will receive £4m p.a. for "Island Funding" in total on an 

ongoing basis (i.e. including the additional £3m p.a. anticipated in 2024/25) 
iii) Assumed Council Tax increases of 4.99% per annum, representing 2.99% 

for general purposes and 2% for Adult Social Care in 2024/25 and a similar 
increase of 4.99% for all future years of the Forecast 

iv) Adoption of a 100% Council Tax premium for second homes amounting to 
£4.2m from April 2025. 
  

113. It is now estimated that the savings required for the new 3 year period 2025/26 
to 2027/28 will now be £3.0m.  The "smoothing" and "spreading" for the future 
deficit over 3 years is only made possible by holding "headroom" in General 
Reserves above their minimum levels. 

 
114. The Budget Deficit for the new 3 year period is £3.0m and is described in the 

paragraphs that follow. 
 

 
 

£3.0m 
(+/-£5m)
Deficit

Costs & 
Other 

Inflation 
£10.6m

Social 
Care 

Pressures
£16.0m

Fair 
Funding & 

BRR
£1.0m

Govt 
Funding
£0.8m

Council 
Tax 

Increase
£19.8m

Business 
Rate 

increase 
£4.0m

Page 32



115. The most significant assumptions in the medium term future forecasts for the 
period 2025/26 to 2027/28 are described below: 

 
Spending: 
 
• Cost and inflationary pressures in both Adult Social Care and Children's 

Services of £16.0m (including future uplifts to the National Living Wage in 
accordance with OBR Forecasts) 

• Cost and inflationary pressures in all other Services of £10.6m covering all 
pay and prices (assuming pay awards, specific contract inflation and CPI/RPI 
increases in line with the forecasts from the OBR) 

• Modest Revenue Contributions to Capital re-commencing in 2025/26 

• No further contributions to the Transformation Reserve 

• An assumption of a steady state for all budgets. 
 

Funding: 
 
• A net loss in Government funding, mainly arising from the Fair Funding 

Review and Business Rate Retention scheme of £1.0m, phased in from 
2026/27 onwards (Note: the Business Rate "Reset" will remove £4m of growth 
which may not be fully re-distributed through the Fair Funding Review) 

• Continuing "Island Funding" of £4m p.a. 

• An overall increase in Council Tax Income of £19.8m which incorporates: 
o Increases of 4.99% per annum for 2025/26 to 2027/28 (including 2% 

p.a for the Adult Social Care Precept) 
o 100% Council Tax premium for second homes amounting to £4.2m 

from April 2025 

• An inflation based increase in Government Grants of £0.8m 

• Indexation uplifts on retained Business Rates of 2% for 2025/26, 1.6% for 
2026/27 and then 1.4% for 2027/28  

• An underlying zero growth assumption for changes in Business Rates from 
2025/26 onwards, to reflect the uncertainty relating to appeals and 
mandatory reliefs  

• That any loss of business rates income arising from National Business Rate 
reduction/capping initiatives will continue to be recompensed by Government 
via S.31 grant funding. 

 
116. Future funding from Government from 2026/27 onwards is heavily dependent on 

the outcome of the Fair Funding Review and Business Rate Retention scheme 
review.  It must be recognised that the outcome of these reviews remains 
uncertain. 
 

117. It is also important to recognise that this forecast extends beyond the Fair 
Funding Review and the revised Business Rate Retention Scheme expected to 
be implemented in 2026/27.  It moves a year beyond these events and makes 
broad assumptions at the macroeconomic level pending any indicative 
information at the local level.  Inflation assumptions are also potentially volatile 

Page 33



and therefore a significant level of uncertainty remains surrounding the 
"Balanced Forecast" which could realistically vary by +/- £5m. 

 
118. Due to the uncertain nature of the future years' forecasts, it is imperative that the 

Council continues to manage its cost base carefully if it is to remain well placed 
to respond to the review of Local Government Funding. 

 
119. It is proposed that the Council takes an evenly managed approach to addressing 

the £3.0m of savings required over the next 3 years by phasing those savings 
evenly, as set out below, in order to provide reasonable time for plans and the 
necessary proposals to be prepared and implemented.    
 

 
 

120. Due to the uncertain nature of the future years' forecasts, it is imperative that the 
Council plans for at least £1.0m of savings per annum as well as seeking to 
increase General Reserves over time.  This is a balanced approach, appropriate 
to an eventuality where the Council's forecasts are either too pessimistic or too 
optimistic.  For example, in the event that the 3 year forecast improves, the 
Council has not prematurely made a level of savings and service reductions that 
could have been avoided and it allows more time for savings initiatives to take 
effect.  If the forecast deteriorates, the Council will have made good progress 
towards the necessary savings and have sufficient General Reserves to avoid 
significant "spikes" in Savings Requirements in any single year in the future. 
 

121. Crucially this savings strategy, as described above, can only work if the Council 
retains General Reserves and the Covid Contingency at the levels set out in this 
report as well as retaining the Transformation Reserve to be available to support 
the delivery of future savings.  Should the Council elect to follow an alternative 
savings profile, the Council's financial risk will increase, and this will necessarily 
need to be reflected in the assessment of the minimum level of General Reserves 
(now determined to be required to be maintained at £8.0m) that the Council must 
hold to maintain its financial resilience. 

 
122. In summary, the overall forecast budget deficit and therefore savings 

requirement, has been reduced to £3.0m as a consequence of the Cabinet’s 
Budget 2024/25 proposals, the anticipated increase in "Island Funding" and the 
adoption of a 100% Council Tax premium on second homes.  The forecast has 
been “rolled on” to now include the financial year 2027/28 and the overall forecast 
budget deficit and savings requirement for the 3 year period is forecast to be 
£3.0m.  Importantly, this level of budget deficit can only be maintained if the 
Council approves the proposed £2.75m of savings as well as the increase in 
Council Tax of 4.99% for 2024/25. 

 

£3.0m Deficit - Next 3 Years
2025/26
£1.0m

2026/27
£1.0m

2027/28
£1.0m

Page 34



123. The medium term financial forecasts are set out as part of the General Fund 
Summary in Appendix 1. 

 
124. The fundamental aim of the Medium Term Financial Strategy is for in-year 

expenditure to equal in-year income, excluding items of a "one-off" nature to 
achieve "structural balance". 
 

 
ESTIMATED RESERVES 2023/24 TO 2027/28 
 
125. In general, maintaining adequate reserves is a measure of responsible financial 

management and strong financial health.  They are required to be able to 
respond to "financial shocks" without having to revert to the alternative of quick 
and severe services reductions.  Equally, they can be a vehicle to take advantage 
of any opportunities that may arise which are in the financial interests of the 
Council (for example, matched funding opportunities which could lever in 
additional funding for the Island).  Importantly, they also enable differences 
between expenditure and funding levels to be "smoothed out" and "spread out" 
in a managed and planned way over time. 

 
126. Operating at a minimum level of reserves, and an over reliance on the use of 

reserves in any one year, has the effect of delaying savings from one year and 
adding them to the following year's savings requirement.  This results in a level 
of savings required in the following year that are likely to be extremely difficult to 
achieve and with a corresponding drastic reduction in services.  It also places 
the Council in a potential chaotic environment where any unforeseen financial 
pressures arising in the year would need to be met by equivalent further savings 
in the same year.  This can have a de-stabilising effect on Council services, 
shifting the focus from driving through efficiencies, income generation and 
regeneration activities, to one that is focused on cuts in services which can be 
achieved more readily within the timescales. 

 
127. In accordance with Best Practice, a review of the Council's reserves and 

balances has been undertaken as part of the budget process. The review 
considers the Council’s potential financial risks over the next few years to 
determine the prudent level of balances that should be retained, based on the 
Council’s risk profile. The assessment of the minimum level of General Reserves 
takes account of, but is not limited to, the following: 
 
• The current relatively low level of General Reserves representing just 2.5% 

of Gross Expenditure  

• The required level of future savings necessary to remedy the forecast deficit 
of £3.0m 

• The susceptibility of the Council's forecast to vary by+/- £5m due to inflation 
and demand volatility plus the outcome of the Fair Funding Review and the 
Business Rate Retention "reset"  

• The increasing susceptibility to budget pressures generally given the 
magnitude of savings that have been made in the past (i.e. £97m) 

• Potential for Council Tax and Business Rates collection to reduce associated 
with the legacy of the covid pandemic as well as the cost of living crises 

Page 35



• The inherent volatility of the Business Rate Retention system (previously 
described) both now and in the future 

• Potential liabilities for some substantial disputes against the Council. 
  

128. Predicated on the approval of £2.75m Budget Savings for 2024/25 and a Council 
Tax increase of 4.99% it is considered, given the weight of financial risk being 
carried by the Council and the other reserves that are maintained for specific 
purposes, that the minimum General Reserves that should be maintained is 
£8.0m. 
 

129. The statement below gives details of the General Reserves in hand at 01 April 
2023, together with the proposed use of reserves in 2023/24 and 2024/25 arising 
from the Budget proposals contained within this report.  The forecast balances 
from 2025/26 onwards assume that the £3.0m savings requirements set out in 
the previous section are achieved according to the profile described. 

 
General Reserves Forecast – Up to 2027/28 
Financial Year Current  

Year 
£m 

Forecast 
2024/25 

£m 

Forecast 
2025/26 

£m 

Forecast  
2026/27 

£m 

Forecast 
2027/28 

£m 
Opening Balance 13.0 12.1 10.9 11.0 10.8 
In Year Surplus / (Deficit) -0.9 -1.2 0.1 -0.2 0.0 
Forecast Balance 12.1 10.9 11.0 10.8 10.8 

 
130. The level of balances held over the period will be higher than the minimum level 

recommended in the short term. This prudent approach is being taken for a 
number of specific reasons, which include: 
 
• The susceptibility of the Council's 3 Year Forecast to vary by +/- £5m due to 

the risks previously described  

• The strategy to "smooth out" and "spread out" the Council's necessary 
savings over longer periods of time, relying on the use of Reserves in some 
years whilst Savings requirements "catch up" 

• The continuing risks associated with the financial sustainability for both Adult 
Social Care and Children’s Services. For example, should the recommended 
£2.75m savings not be achieved in 2024/25, General Reserves would be 
close to minimum levels during the year. 

• The balances are predicated on further savings (as yet unidentified) of £3.0m 
being achieved over the following 3 years. If those savings are not made, 
balances would be below minimum levels by March 2027. 

• The uncommitted balance available in the Transformation Reserve of just 
£3.2m (see below) means there are only limited funds available to fund the 
implementation costs of future efficiency savings. 

 
131. General Reserves are anticipated to fall to £10.8m over the next 4 years.   As 

previously described, it has been a key feature of the Council's MTFS to repair 
and gently build General Reserves so that they are available to draw on and 
"smooth savings" at lower levels but over a longer period of time as well as being 
available for financial shocks should they arise.  It is crucial that the Council now 

Page 36



seeks to take opportunities to restore General Reserves to provide additional 
protection from financial risk.   
 

132. In addition to General Reserves, the Council has established a Transformation 
Reserve which has a current uncommitted balance of £3.2m.  This reserve was 
established as one of the Council's primary vehicles to deliver savings.  Often, 
transformation schemes aimed at significant cost reduction or income generation 
in line with the Cabinet’s aspirations will be of a scale and complexity that require 
up front resources, especially if they are to proceed at pace.  

 
133. It is anticipated that there will be a need to provide up-front funding from this 

reserve particularly for the savings and cost avoidance measures in Adult Social 
Care to support their delivery.   

 
134. Maintaining the Transformation Reserve at sufficient levels to support savings 

delivery through "Spend to Save", "Invest to Save" and “Invest to earn” schemes 
is vital to the success of the MTFS and the Council's future Savings 
Requirements.  Accordingly, a strategy for its replenishment is a necessity if this 
Reserve is to continue to deliver against its intended purpose. 

 
135. Due to the serious financial constraints of the Council, the Council's future 

forecasts do not plan for any replenishment of the Reserve.  It is advisable 
therefore, that should any further savings be made by year end, consideration 
be given at that time to any necessary replenishment.  

 
136. The Council maintains a number of other reserves, many of a modest nature, in 

order to provide for known liabilities in the future.  These include: 
 

• The Highways PFI Reserve 

• Insurance and Risk Reserve 

• Repairs and Renewals Reserve 

• Business Rate Retention Reserve. 
 
137. For the Council to meet the overall aim of its MTFS, it is important to strike the 

optimum balance between its key drivers of: 
 

• Delivering savings (income, efficiencies and service reductions) over a 
manageable period of time which is consistent with maintaining good quality 
essential services 

• Provide sufficient funding for Spend to Save, Invest to Save and Invest to 
Earn, initiatives through the Council's Transformation Reserve 

• Ensure that the Capital Programme is sufficiently funded over the medium 
term to stimulate the Island Economy and improve the Council's overall 
financial position   

• Maintaining General Reserves at levels that ensure strong financial 
resilience and financial health to provide a stable platform for all the above.  

 
138. To support this aim and ensure that maximum resources are available for the 

delivery of necessary savings, it is proposed that any further savings for 2023/24 
that are made by year-end (after allowing for specific carry forward requests) be 

Page 37



transferred to the Transformation Reserve, Revenue Reserve for Capital (to 
increase the Capital Resources available) and General Reserves (to improve 
overall financial resilience), with the level of each transfer determined by the 
S.151 Officer.  

 
 
CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2023/24 TO 2028/29 

 
 

Overall Strategy 
 
139. As described in the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS), the strategy is to 

maximise the capital resources available and then target the investment of those 
resources to areas that will enable the Council to meet its statutory 
responsibilities, stimulate the Island Economy and improve the Council's overall 
financial position.   

 
140. The development of a Capital Strategy considers investments that will be made 

in the acquisition, creation, or enhancement of tangible or intangible fixed assets, 
to yield benefits to the council for a period of more than one year.  It also 
considers how stewardship, value for money, prudence, sustainability and 
affordability will be secured. The Capital Strategy therefore has 3 core aims:  

 
Aim 1 - To support a Medium Term Outlook  

 
• allocating known resources to future years for critical capital investment, 

ensuring that in years where capital resources are limited, critical investment 
can continue to be made; 

• aligning known resources and spending, ensuring that uncertain or forecast 
resources are not applied to current investment, thus leaving potentially 
unfunded obligations in the future; and 

• smoothing out any significant gaps between capital investment needs and 
capital resources available by utilising contributions from revenue. 

 
Aim 2 - To Maximise the Capital Resources available and the flexibility of their 
application 
  
• setting aside capital funding for "match funding" opportunities, where these 

are aligned with the Council's strategic objectives in order to take advantage 
of "free" funding;  

• reviewing contractually uncommitted schemes against newly emerging 
capital investment priorities;  

• avoiding ring-fencing of capital resources, except where such ring-fencing is 
statutory; and 

• using prudential borrowing for "Invest to Save" schemes, or schemes which 
generate income.  

 
  

Page 38



Aim 3 - Targeted Capital Investment 
  

• annual review of all contractually uncommitted capital schemes which rely 
on non-ring-fenced funding is undertaken to ensure that they remain a priority 
in the context of any newly emerging needs and aspirations;  

• investment in programmes of a recurring nature that are essential to maintain 
operational effectiveness; and 

• invest in specific schemes that: 
o have a significant catalytic potential to unlock the regeneration of the 

Island;  
o are significant in terms of the Council strategies that they serve;  
o are significantly income generating or efficiency generating; and 
o if not implemented would cause severe disruption to service delivery.  

 
 

Capital Resources 
 

141. Capital resources available for ‘new starts’ in 2024/25 and onwards have been 
reviewed and the amount available to be allocated has been determined as 
£9.3m. This figure includes reallocated resources as a result of a review of 
contractually uncommitted schemes and the reprioritisation of projects.  
 

142. Additionally, a small contingency has been retained to mitigate the risk of capital 
receipts and grants being lower than anticipated and some funding has been 
held back to meet unavoidable increases in costs to approved schemes and to 
support match funding bids for additional external funding. 

 
143. The total capital resources available to the Council for ‘New Starts’ in 2024/25 

and onwards are described below. 
 

 
Corporate Capital Resources 

 
144. This includes all non-ring-fenced capital resources such as underspends from 

current capital schemes, capital receipts, and revenue contributions. This has 
provided a very modest £1.4m for new capital schemes. 

 
 

Ring-fenced & Passported Capital Funding 
 
145. Ring-fenced capital funding includes the following: 
 

• Funding of £2.3m is ring-fenced to the Better Care Fund which is targeted at 
Disabled Facilities Grants and wider Social Care programmes.  This is 
required to be prioritised by the Council and the Isle of Wight Integrated Care 
Board 

 
146. Passported Capital Funding is funding that whilst not ring-fenced is provided on 

the basis that it is targeted towards specific services and includes the following: 
 

Page 39



• Grant funding of £2.8m from the Department for Transport Integrated 
Transport Block (ITB) funding towards various network integrity schemes 

• Schools capital maintenance grant targeted at the improvement of school’s 
estate of £2.2m.   

 
 
Prudential Borrowing 

 
147. Prudential Borrowing is only available for a Council's "Primary Purpose for 

Investment" which must be "consistent with statutory provisions, proportionate to 
service and revenue budgets and consistent with effective treasury management 
practice".     
 

148. The arrangements for Prudential Borrowing were strengthened following growing 
concerns over Local Government commercial property investments and taking 
on disproportionate levels of commercial debt to generate yield.  Borrowing for 
"debt-for-yield investment" is not permissible under the Prudential Code, as it 
does not constitute the primary purpose of investment and represents 
unnecessary risk to public funds.  

 
149. Prudential Borrowing is available for "Invest to Save" schemes only where those 

savings must accrue directly to the Council on a sustained basis.  Prudential 
Borrowing is governed by the Prudential Code and its associated tests of 
affordability, sustainability and prudence.  Prudential borrowing is what is termed 
“unsupported borrowing” and means that the Government does not provide any 
revenue support through government grant for the repayment of that debt 
(neither principal nor interest).  
 

150. The Affordability test dictates that the Council must be able to demonstrate that 
it can afford the debt repayments over the long term. Given the future forecast 
deficits of the Council, prudential borrowing is only available for Invest to Save 
schemes where there is a demonstrable case that the capital expenditure 
incurred will result in savings (i.e. cost reduction or additional income) that at 
least cover the cost of borrowing.  Also, that those savings accrue directly to the 
Council and will be available on a sustained basis over the lifetime of any 
borrowing. 

 
151. No new prudential borrowing has been included in the programme.   
 

 
Capital Investment Proposals ("New Starts") – 2024/25 

 
152. Proposals for the allocation of the Council's ‘new start’ capital resources of £9.3m 

are set out in Appendix 4 for approval.  This includes allocations of indicative 
grant funding amounts for 2024/25 and 2025/26 relating to both Transport and 
Education, allowing those services to plan with more certainty over a 2 year 
period.  With a larger capital allocation, it provides the ability to take a more 
strategic approach to capital investment over a longer time horizon. 
 

153. The Capital Investment proposals comprise a balanced set of proposals which: 
 

Page 40



• Provide some assurance and funding security for essential core services and 
facilities 

• Complements the existing capital programme and further supports the 
council’s financial viability for the medium term 

• Invests in Schools 

• Invests in care facilities including adaptions to peoples’ homes 

• Invest in highways network works, the public realm and rights of way 

• Provides for a Place / Towns Initiative Fund, the overall aim being to pump 
prime local projects to improve prosperity to the Island's communities. 

 
The detailed design, eligibility and evaluation criteria of the Place / Towns 
Initiative Fund will be the subject of a separate report to Cabinet in 2024/25. 

 
 

Proposed Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2028/29 
 

154. The overall Capital Programme, including all existing schemes which have been 
reviewed and considered as a continuing priority, and proposed new schemes is 
set out in Appendix 5 for approval.    
 
 
Future Capital Obligations, Priorities and Aspirations  

 
155. The proposals for capital investment contained within this report complement the 

existing Capital Programme and provide further solidity to secure the Council's 
financial viability for the medium term.  Nevertheless, the Council will inevitably 
face future obligations of a statutory nature as well as wish to further develop its 
priorities and aspirations for future capital investment to meet its overall aim of 
financial and public service sustainability.  
 

156. Known obligations and aspirations, in line with the MTFS, for future capital 
investment once further capital resources become available include:  

 
Statutory Obligations:  

 
• Essential maintenance obligations for schools  
• Provision of additional Disabled Facilities Grants  
• Requirements to improve road safety, disabled access and air quality 
• Improvements to rights of way and coastal protection 

 
Improving the Island Economy:  

 
• Further development of key employment, housing and regeneration sites 
• Developing the Digital Island 
• Coastal protection schemes to protect homes and businesses  

Page 41



• Improvements to road transport infrastructure as a means of supporting new 
business growth and productivity generally, as well as the protection of the 
tourism economy.  

 
Public Service Transformation:  

 
• Developing the Digital Council 
• Further supported living facilities for Adult Social Care clients  
• Use of technology to provide greater personal independence for those with 

care needs 
• Developing the Council’s commitment to work with partners and central 

government to ensure that the Island's net carbon emissions can be reduced 
to zero by 2030 as part of its climate emergency resolution. 

 
157. The scale of the funding required for these obligations and aspirations is such 

that it far outstrips the annual capital funding which may be available.  With 
minimal core capital funding, there is a significant shortfall ("Capital Gap") to be 
met.  All the ring-fenced and passported grants have obligations attached to 
them.   £2.3m is ringfenced to the Better Care Fund and the remainder, although 
not ringfenced, is expected to be targeted at schools and highways. The overall 
implication being that there is virtually no routine annual funding available for 
Capital Investment beyond those items described above.  
 

158. Given the scale of the "Capital Gap" described above, the necessity to 
supplement the Capital Resources available remains an explicit feature of the 
Council's approved MTFS so that the Council can continue to fund essential 
services but also fund Regeneration and Income Generation schemes aimed at 
improving the overall financial sustainability of the Council and the economy of 
the Island.  For this reason, it is recommended that the S.151 Officer be given 
delegated authority to transfer all or part of any further savings made in 2023/24 
arising at the year-end to supplement the Capital Resources available for future 
years. 
 

 
STATEMENT OF THE SECTION 151 OFFICER IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2003  
 
159. Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 (“the Act”) requires the Chief 

Financial Officer to report to the Council on the following matters: 
 

• The robustness of the estimates included in the Budget made for the 
purposes of setting the Council Tax; and 

• The adequacy of proposed financial reserves. 
 
160. Section 25 of the Act concentrates on uncertainties within the budget year rather 

than the greater uncertainties in future years. In the current economic climate, 
there continue to be uncertainties in both the current and future years i.e. beyond 
2024/25. Particular uncertainties exist regarding: 

 
• The volatility and elevated levels of inflation 

Page 42



• The increased levels of demand for Council Services being driven by the 
"cost of living crisis" 

• The continuing impact of the Covid pandemic, its impact on costs, Council 
Tax and Business Rate income levels 

• The general uncertainty surrounding Business Rate income from the recent 
revaluation and the extent of successful appeals and mandatory reliefs, all 
of which affect Retained Business Rates 

• Government Funding levels (including the outcome of the Fair Funding 
Review and the Business Rate Retention scheme review expected in 
2026/27) 

• The ability of the Council to continue to make necessary savings at the 
required scale and pace 

• The likely demographic cost pressures arising in demand driven services 
such as Adult Social Care, Children's Services and Housing 

• The extent to which new policy changes will be funded. 
 
All of these uncertainties increase the need for adequate reserves and balances 
to be maintained in current and future years. 

 
161. A minimum level of revenue reserves must be specified within the Budget. The 

Council must take full account of this information when setting the Budget 
Requirement. 

 
162. Should the level of reserves fall below the minimum approved sum of £8.0m as 

proposed in this report, either arising from an overspend in the previous year or 
the current year, the S.151 Officer has a duty to report this to the Council with 
recommendations as to the actions that should be taken to rectify the shortfall.  
In the most extreme of circumstances, the S.151 Officer can issue a S.114 notice, 
imposing spending controls until a balanced budget is approved by the Council.  
 
Robustness of the Budget 

 
163. In setting the Budget, the Council should have regard to the strategic and 

operational risks facing the Council. Some of these risks reflect the current 
economic climate and the national issues surrounding Local Authority funding 
levels. 

 
164. Estimates and forecasts have been prepared to include all known significant 

financial factors over the medium term in order to inform spending decisions. 
 

165. Assumptions for the Budget and forecasts for future years are considered to be 
sound and based on the best available information.  These are set out in detail 
under the Section entitled "Revenue Forecasts 2025/26 to 2027/28" and use the 
following sources as their evidence base: 

 
• Government funding as set out in the Settlement for 2024/25 

• An assumption that the overall outcome of the Fair Funding Review and 
Business Rate Retention scheme review will lead to a net reduction in 
funding of £1.0m   

Page 43



• An assumption that the additional £3m p.a. (£4m p.a in total) of "Island 
Funding" will be ongoing 

• A "no growth" assumption for Retained Business Rates from 2025/26 
onwards, on the basis that any income arising from growth will be offset by 
appeals, reliefs and change of use 

• An assumption that the value of successful appeals against the 2023 rating 
list will be based on the most up to date information from the Valuation Office 
Agency 

• Increases in Council Tax based on what is likely to be acceptable and within 
expected referendum limits  

• Inflation on Retained Business Rates and prices in accordance with inflation 
estimates from the OBR 

• Specific provisions for increases in demand for both Adult Social Care and 
Children's Services based on current trends 

• Prudential borrowing requirements based on approved Capital Schemes 

• Revenue contributions to Capital based on known commitments and 
estimates of future needs 

• Balances and contingencies based on a risk assessment of all known 
financial risks. 

 
166. Savings contained within the Budget are those where Portfolio Holders and 

Directors assess the confidence level of achievement as medium and above.  
Savings proposals will also be subject to scrutiny by Members. Responsibility 
and accountability for delivering the savings rests with the relevant Portfolio 
Holders and Directors and progress will be monitored throughout the year as part 
of the Budget Monitoring process. 

 
167. The most volatile budgets are those of Adult Social Care and Children’s Services.  

Budget provision has been made available to cover these risks both directly 
within the Service Budget as well as within the Council’s overall contingency 
provision. 

 
168. The forecasts prepared for the forthcoming and future years are robustly based 

and illustrate the expected costs the Council will incur to deliver current levels of 
service. 

 
169. Portfolio Holders will be given regular budget updates by Directors to ensure that 

action to address any potential variance is taken promptly and quarterly budget 
monitoring reports will continue to be presented to the Cabinet. 

 
170. Prudential Indicators are accurately calculated based on the Council’s audited 

Balance Sheet, notified income streams and in-depth financial appraisals of 
proposed capital schemes.  These are published and reviewed on a regular basis 
to ensure that the Council complies with the concepts of Affordability, Prudence, 
and Sustainability. The Council can only consider Prudential Borrowing for 
“Spend to Save Schemes”, as it is currently unaffordable for any other purpose 
given the forecast budget deficits in 2025/26 and future years. 

 

Page 44



171. Future years’ budgets will remain challenging due to inflation and demand 
volatility, the uncertainties associated with the overhaul of Local Government 
Funding and the continuing demographic pressures on Care Services. 

 
The Adequacy of Proposed Financial Reserves 

 
172. The Council's General Reserves have been proposed at levels that are 

consistent with the Council's financial risks over the medium term and take 
account of the level of the Council's Corporate Contingency as well as other 
earmarked reserves that are set aside for risk events such as the Insurance 
Reserve, Repair and Renewals Reserve and the Business Rate Retention 
Reserve.   

 
173. Reserves provide a buffer against unexpected costs such as pay awards, 

inflation, shortfalls in income and overspends and enable the Council to manage 
change without undue impact on the Council Tax or immediate reductions to 
services. They are a key element of strong financial standing and resilience as 
they mitigate risks such as increased demand and other cost pressures.  

 
174. The level of General Reserves held will be higher than the minimum level 

required. This approach is in accordance with the approved MTFS in order to 
"smooth out" and "spread out" the necessary savings to meet the future forecast 
budget deficits in a planned and managed way.  The current financial 
environment and the pace at which £11m of unplanned Budget Pressures for 
2024/25 (and circa. £30m over the past 2 years) has arisen has exposed the 
susceptibility of Council's overall financial resilience, making the compelling case 
for maintaining General Reserves beyond the minimum and the importance of 
the MTFS to gently increase General Reserves over time.  The position will 
continue to be reviewed and reported to Members on an annual basis. 

 
175. The Transformation Reserve is the Council’s primary vehicle for funding Spend 

to Save and Spend to Avoid Cost Initiatives and Feasibility Studies, and currently 
stands at just £3.2m.  For this Reserve to continue in this capacity, it will be 
necessary to replenish it from any further savings, transfers from other reserves 
no longer required, or alternatively, from the Revenue Budget in future years. 

 
176. The Council's Covid Contingency is also critical for managing the Council's future 

risk.  At the current level of £5m, it provides sufficient support for the next 2 years, 
over which time it is expected that such costs will either reduce or plans can be 
made for a managed reduction in funding. 

 
177. The Council maintains several other Earmarked Reserves for specific purposes, 

all of which are at the levels required to meet known future commitments.   
 
178. The Council’s core contingency provision for 2024/25 has been set on a risk 

basis at £4.2m and reflects anticipated calls on the budget where the timing and 
value is not yet known. The use and application of the contingency will be 
exercised tightly.   

 
179. At the proposed levels, the Council reserves are reasonably expected to be 

sufficient to accommodate the Council's financial risks and maintain the Council's 
overall financial health. 

 

Page 45



 
STRATEGIC CONTEXT 
 
180. The Council's Budget for 2023/24 and 2024/25, the level of Council Tax and the 

Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2028/29 represent the Council's detailed plan for 
2024/25 and set the direction for the medium term.  They are set within the 
context of the Council's approved Corporate Plan and Medium Term Financial 
Strategy (MTFS). 

 
 
CONSULTATION 
 
181. The proposals set out in this report have been prepared in consultation with the 

Cabinet.   
 
182. The Portfolio savings amounts proposed within this report will inevitably impact 

on service provision.  Appendix 3 describes the indicative savings that might (or 
are likely) to be made in order to achieve the proposed savings amounts.  Whilst 
some are likely to be implemented, there will be others that require consultation 
and appropriate Equality Impact Assessments to be considered before any 
implementation can take place.  For this reason, any savings proposal set out in 
Appendix 3 can be altered, amended or substituted with an alternative proposal 
following appropriate consultation.  

 
183. An Island-wide budget consultation took place over the period 18 December 

2023 to 26 January 2024 as previously described.  The Scrutiny Committee will 
also review the proposals contained within this report and have the opportunity 
to make their representations to the Cabinet.    

 
 
FINANCIAL / BUDGET IMPLICATIONS 
 
184. All of the financial implications arising from the recommendations are contained 

within the body of the report and its appendices. 
 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
185. The council will need to set a lawful and balanced budget and Council Tax level 

for 2024/25 by the statutory deadline of 11 March 2024. In developing any 
proposals for budget changes, the necessary Equality Impact Assessments and 
any consultation processes will need to be followed. 

 
186. Section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 makes it an offence for 

a Councillor in council tax arrears (with at least two months unpaid bills) to vote 
at a meeting of the Council where financial matters relating to council tax are 
being considered. It is also an offence if any such Councillor present, who is 
aware of the arrears, fails to disclose that they are in arrears of council tax. 
Members must therefore ensure that if they have such arrears, that they disclose 
this to the meeting. 

 
 

Page 46



EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY 
 
187. The Council has to comply with Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. This 

provides that decision makers must have due regard to the elimination of 
discrimination, victimisation and harassment, advancing equalities, and fostering 
good relations between different groups (race, disability, gender, age, sexual 
orientation, gender reassignment, religion/belief and marriage/civil partnership). 
 

188. The savings proposals set out within this report are proposals only for the 
purposes of setting Portfolio Cash Limits and the overall Council Budget.  Whilst 
most are likely to be implemented, there will be some that require further 
consultation and appropriate Equality Impact Assessments to be considered 
before any implementation can take place.  For this reason, Portfolio holders 
have the discretion to alter, amend or substitute any proposal with an alternative 
proposal following appropriate consultation.  An Equality Impact Assessment will 
be annexed to the report to Full Council but in the context that those savings 
proposals are indicative only.  

 
  
PROPERTY IMPLICATIONS 
 
189. The property implications contained within this report seek to improve the 

sufficiency, condition and efficiency of the Council's existing property estate.  
Proposals for land acquisitions are intended to provide sites for regeneration and 
employment and will only be purchased after full and proper due diligence.  Any 
potential new build or property acquisition proposals will be the subject of a full 
financial appraisal and proper due diligence.  

 
 
OPTIONS 
 
190. The proposed Budget for 2023/24 and 2024/25, associated Savings 

Requirements, use of General Reserves and the Capital Programme have been 
prepared in accordance with the Council's approved Medium Term Financial 
Strategy (MTFS).  These proposals are presented as a cohesive and interrelated 
package of measures aimed at providing the maximum opportunity to meet the 
financial challenge faced by the Council.  The options available within a cohesive 
Financial Strategy are: 

 
A. In respect of the Revenue Budget 2024/25: 

 
i) Approve the recommendations set out in this report 

ii) Reduce the proposed increase in Council Tax and increase the level of 
savings noting that every 1% reduction in Council Tax will require an 
increase in savings of £988,900 

iii) Increase the use of General Reserves used in 2024/25 and reduce the 
level of savings accordingly, acknowledging that: 

(a) In doing so, the level of savings in 2025/26 and future years will 
increase providing an uneven profile of savings, which is contrary 
to the approved MTFS, and the Council's financial resilience will 

Page 47



reduce at a time of unprecedented inflationary volatility, service 
demands arising from the rising cost of living and uncertainty for 
the future of Local Government funding 

(b) The minimum level of Reserves to be maintained will need to be 
increased in response to the increase in financial risk  

iv) Amend the allocation of Savings Requirements between Portfolios by 
reducing savings in one or more Portfolios and providing replacement 
savings of equivalent value in one or more other Portfolios 

v) A combination of options (ii) to (iv) above 

vi) Set a Council Tax for General Purposes at a level above 4.99% and 
undertake a local referendum. 

 
B. In respect of the Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2028/29 as set out in 

Appendix 5: 
 
i) Approve the recommendations set out in this report 

ii) Amend the proposed "New Start" Capital Schemes by reducing / 
deleting proposed Capital Schemes and replacing with alternative 
Capital Schemes of equivalent value 

iii) Amend the proposed "New Start" Capital Schemes by reducing / 
deleting Capital Schemes and retaining the amount of Corporate 
Capital resources available for future Capital Programmes 

iv) Amend the proposed "New Start" Capital Schemes by reducing / 
deleting Capital Schemes and reducing the funding provided from 
Corporate Reserves and retaining those funds in General Reserves to 
provide additional financial resilience to the Council. 

 
 

RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
191. The financial challenge is the single biggest risk to sustainable public services 

on the Island.  Accordingly, the Council needs to resolutely maximise the 
deployment of the resources that it does have (Revenue, Capital, Property and 
Staff) towards driving additional income / funding and cost savings to secure 
Council Services for the future.  The Budget and Council Tax proposals set out 
in this report are part of a cohesive plan which conforms to the Council's 
approved Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS).  The strategy provides both 
structure and direction to achieve the financial challenge in a way that is aligned 
with the Council's corporate objectives and minimises cuts to essential services. 
 

192. The key risk is that the Council does not approve a Revenue Budget for 2024/25 
and a Capital Programme that conforms to its MTFS, and as a consequence the 
approach to cost savings / additional income / funding is disorderly with sub 
optimal decisions taken which lead to greater than necessary cuts to essential 
services.  Furthermore, that proposed amendments relating to reductions in the 
level of Council Tax or increases in the use of General Reserves are 

Page 48



"unbalanced" which ultimately compromise the financial health and resilience of 
the Council and as a consequence jeopardise the future of Council Services.  

 
193. The robustness of the Budget and Adequacy of Reserves is described in the 

section entitled "Statement of the Section 151 Officer in Accordance with the 
Local Government Act 2003". 

 
194. Key risks relating to the Capital Programme are any amendments to the 

proposed programme to: 
 

• Delete or reduce operationally essential schemes which have the potential 
to compromise IT system integrity and support and create serious disruption 
to Council Services 

• Delete or reduce operationally essential schemes which have the potential 
to close buildings from which Council Services operate 

• Delete or reduce schemes which are of a critical Health & Safety nature 

• Delete or reduce schemes of a cost avoidance, income generating or 
regeneration nature which could compromise the future financial viability of 
the Council and delivery of essential services 

• Delete or reduce Coastal Defence schemes, jeopardising external 
investment from the Environment Agency and therefore place homes and 
businesses at risk. 

 
 
EVALUATION 
 
195. Option A (i) and B (i) are recommended.  The Budget and Council Tax proposals 

set out in this report are part of a cohesive plan which conforms to the Council's 
approved Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) and is consistent with the 
Council's Corporate Plan. In particular: 

 
• It proposes a Budget that is Balanced, albeit relying on General Reserves 

totalling £1.2m but moving towards "Structural Balance" in 2025/26 

• It provides £11.3m of additional funding for Adult Social Care and Children's 
Services, bringing financial stability to those essential services at a critical 
time 

• An increase in Council Tax of 4.99% avoids further cuts to essential services 
to residents and improves the funding base for the future 

• It reduces the overall Savings Requirements for future years to £1.0m per 
annum and evenly phased  

• It provides for a "smoothing" and "spreading" of future savings over a 
planned period enabling the Council to maximise its operational capacity to 
implement initiatives aimed at increasing income / funding and reducing 
costs and providing time for the "alternative to cuts" initiatives to take effect  

• Seeks to minimise deterioration in the overall financial resilience of the 
Council at a time of financial and economic volatility and unprecedented 
uncertainty in terms of both future cost and funding, enabling the Council to 
guard against more immediate and deeper savings 

Page 49



• Ensures that sufficient funding is available to enable, or "pump prime" Spend 
to Save (Revenue) and Invest to Save (Capital) schemes as one of the 
primary vehicles to address future savings requirements 

• Provides £9.3m Capital Investment, which in particular, will enable the 
Council to improve school facilities, provide further support to vulnerable 
residents to stay in their home safely and meets essential transport safety 
and highway improvements.  

Page 50



RECOMMENDATION 
 

196. It is recommended that the Cabinet endorse the following: 
 

(a) The recommendations to the Council set out below. 
 
197. It is recommended that the Council approve the following: 

 
(a) The revised Revenue Budget for the financial year 2023/24 and the 

Revenue Budget for the financial year 2024/25 as set out in the General 
Fund Summary (Appendix 1) which includes: 

(i) Additional spending in Adult Social Care of £6.3m and Children's 
Services of £5.0m 

(ii) A Covid Contingency of £5m 
(iii) No Revenue Contribution to Capital in 2023/24 or 2024/25 

(b) Any variation arising from the Local Government Finance Settlement 
2024/25 or any further savings made in 2023/24 arising at the year-end 
(after allowing for specific carry forward requests) be transferred to the 
Revenue Reserve for Capital, Transformation Reserve, and General 
Reserves with the level of each transfer to be determined by the S.151 
Officer. 

(c) That the level of Council Tax be increased by 2.99% for general purposes 
in accordance with the referendum threshold5 for 2024/25 announced by 
Government (as calculated in Appendix 2) 

(d) That the level of Council Tax be increased by a further 2.0% beyond the 
referendum threshold (as calculated in Appendix 2) to take advantage of the 
flexibility offered by Government to implement a "Social Care Precept"; and 
that in accordance with the conditions of that flexibility, the full amount of 
the associated sum generated of £1,977,705 is passported direct to Adult 
Social Care 

(e) That the amounts set out in Appendix 2 be now calculated by the Council 
for the financial year 2024/25 in accordance with Section 31 and Sections 
34 to 36 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 

(f) The S.151 Officer be given delegated authority to implement any variation 
to the overall level of Council Tax arising from the final notification of the 
Hampshire Police & Crime Commissioner, Hampshire & Isle of Wight Fire 
& Rescue Authority and Parish and Town Council precepts, and amend the 
calculations set out in Appendix 2 accordingly 

(g) The savings proposals for each Portfolio amounting, in total, to £2.75m for 
2024/25 and continuing into future years as set out on the next page: 
 
 
 
 

Page 51



 

Portfolio 
Controllable 

Budget  Savings Proposal 

£ £ % 
Adult Social Care & Public Health* 57,782,000 919,900 1.6% 
Children's Services, Education & Corporate 
Functions* 41,238,000 207,000 0.5% 

Climate Change, Biosphere & Waste 6,777,000 68,000 1.0% 

Deputy Leader - Housing & Finance 8,292,000 107,100 1.3% 

Economy, Regeneration, Culture & Leisure 3,052,000 24,000 0.8% 

Leader - Transport Infrastructure, Highways PFI 
and Transport Strategy, Strategic Oversight and 
External Partnerships** 

13,658,000 1,167,000 8.5% 

Planning, Coastal Protection & Flooding 2,361,000 0 0.0% 

Regulatory Services, Community Protection & ICT 11,340,000 257,000 2.3% 

Grand Total 144,500,000 2,750,000 1.9% 

* Excludes the additional funding passported through to Adult Social Care of £6.3m (which if 
included would result in an overall increase of 9.4%) and the additional funding for Children's 
Services, Education & Lifelong Skills of £5.0m (which if included would result in an overall 
increase of 15.3%)  
** Excludes £19.4m of PFI grant funding, on a gross expenditure basis the saving amounts to 
3.5% 

 

 
(h) Directors be instructed to start planning how the Council will achieve the 

savings requirements of £3.0m for the 3 year period 2025/26 to 2027/28 and 
that this be incorporated into Service Business Plans 

(i) The minimum level of Revenue Balances as at 31 March 2025, predicated 
on the approval of £2.75m savings in 2024/25 be set at £8.0m to reflect the 
known and expected budget and financial risks to the Council 

(j) Members have regard for the "Statement of the Section 151 Officer in 
accordance with the Local Government Act 2003" 

(k) The Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2028/29 set out in Appendix 5 which 
includes all additions, deletions and amendments for slippage and re-
phasing 

(l) The new Capital Investment Proposals ("New Starts") - 2024/25 set out in 
Appendix 4 be reflected within the recommended Capital Programme 
2023/24 to 2028/29 and be funded from the available Capital Resources 

 
 
5 Council Tax increases beyond the referendum threshold can only be implemented following a "Yes" vote in a local referendum. 

Page 52



(m) The allocation of Disabled Facilities Grants be made to the Better Care 
Fund, and reflected within the recommended Capital Programme 2023/24 
to 2028/29 

(n) The S.151 Officer be given delegated authority to determine how each 
source of finance is used to fund the overall Capital Programme and to alter 
the overall mix of financing, as necessary, to maximise the flexibility of 
capital resources used and minimise the ongoing costs of borrowing to the 
Council 

(o) That the S.151 Officer in consultation with the Leader of the Council be 
given delegated authority to release capital resources held back for any 
contingent items that might arise, and for any match funding requirements 
that may be required of the Council in order to secure additional external 
capital funding (e.g. bids for funding from Government or any other external 
source). 

198. It is recommended that the Council note the following in respect of the Council's 
Budget:   
 
(a) The Revenue Budget 2024/25 as set out in Appendix 1 has been prepared 

on the basis of a 4.99% increase in Council Tax, any reduction from the 
overall 4.99% Council Tax increase proposed will require additional savings 
of £988,900 for each 1% reduction in order for the Budget 2024/25 to be 
approved 

(b) The Revenue Forecasts for 2025/26 onwards as set out in the section 
entitled "Revenue Forecasts 2025/26 to 2027/28" and Appendix 1 

(c) The estimated Savings Requirement of £3.0m for the three year period 
2025/26 to 2027/28, for financial and service planning purposes, be phased 
as follows: 

Financial Year In Year Savings 
Requirement 

£m 

Cumulative Saving 
 

£m 
2025/26 1.0 1.0 
2026/27 1.0 2.0 
2027/28 1.0 3.0 

 

(d) The Transformation Reserve held to fund the upfront costs associated with 
Spend to Save Schemes and Invest to Save Schemes holds a very modest 
uncommitted balance of £3.2m and will only be replenished from 
contributions from the Revenue Budget and an approval to the transfer of 
any further savings at year end 

(e) Should the Council elect to reduce the level of savings below £2.75m in 
2024/25 (and £1.0m p.a. thereafter), the Council's financial risk will increase 
and therefore the minimum level of General Reserves held will also need to 
increase in order to maintain the Council's financial resilience  

Page 53



(f) The Council Tax base for the financial year 2024/25 will be 54,407.3 [item 
T in the formula in Section 31 B(1) of the Local Government Finance Act 
1992, as amended (the “Act”)]. 

(g) The Council Tax element of the Collection Fund for 2023/24 is estimated to 
be in surplus by £1,483,500 which is shared between the Isle of Wight 
Council (85.3%) and the Police & Crime Commissioner (11.1%) and the 
Hampshire & Isle of Wight Fire & Rescue Authority (3.6%) 

(h) The Business Rate element of the Collection Fund for 2023/24 is estimated 
to be in deficit by £3,354,365 of which is shared between the Isle of Wight 
Council (49%), the Hampshire & Isle of Wight Fire & Rescue Authority (1%) 
and the Government (50%)  

(i) The Retained Business Rate income6 for 2024/25 based on the estimated 
Business Rate element of the Collection Fund deficit as at March 2024, the 
Non Domestic Rates poundage for 2024/25 and estimated rateable values 
for 2024/25 has been set at £43,763,020. 

 

 
 
6 Includes Retained Business Rates of £17,546,907, "Top Up" of £12,834,713, S.31 Grants of £15,025,039 a 
Collection Fund deficit of £1,643,639 
 

Page 54



APPENDICES ATTACHED 
 

199. The following appendices are attached: 
 
• Appendix 1 - General Fund Summary 

• Appendix 2 - Council Tax 2024/25 (calculated by the Council for the 
financial year 2024/25 in accordance with Section 31 and Sections 34 to 36 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, and to be updated for Town 
and Parish Precepts once they are available) 

• Appendix 3 - Indicative Savings 2024/25 

• Appendix 4 - New Capital Schemes starting in 2024/25 

• Appendix 5 - Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2028/29 
 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
200. The following background papers have been relied upon in preparing this report. 
 

(a) The Council's approved Medium Term Financial Strategy can be found at:  
• Medium Term Financial Strategy Report 
• Strategy 

 
Contact Point: Chris Ward, Director of Finance,  023 9283 4423 e-mail 
chris.ward@portsmouthcc.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CHRIS WARD 
Director of Finance (S.151 Officer) 

COUNCILLOR PHIL JORDAN 
Leader of the Council 

  
  

 
 
 

  
 COUNCILLOR IAN STEPHENS 
 Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Housing 

and Finance 
 

 
 

Page 55

https://iow.moderngov.co.uk/Data/Full%20Council/20161019/Agenda/Paper%20B.pdf
https://iow.moderngov.co.uk/Data/Full%20Council/20161019/Agenda/Paper%20B%20-%20Appendix%201.pdf
mailto:chris.ward@portsmouthcc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



NET REQUIREMENTS OF PORTFOLIOS

REVISED 
BUDGET 
2023/24

£

ORIGINAL 
BUDGET
 2024/25

£

FORECAST
2025/26

£

FORECAST
2026/27

£

FORECAST
2027/28

£

Adult Social Care & Public Health 59,539,651 59,692,847 61,696,732 63,821,449 66,479,214
Children's Services, Education & Corporate Functions 43,693,223 48,488,527 49,873,133 51,671,516 53,573,866
Climate Change, Biosphere & Waste 5,489,205 5,968,511 6,513,971 7,050,015 7,582,254
Deputy Leader, Housing & Finance 38,628,198 51,880,957 57,731,965 59,164,912 60,434,179
Economy, Regeneration, Culture & Leisure 2,207,499 2,221,147 2,125,026 2,271,256 2,421,896
Leader, Transport & Infrastructure, Highways PFI & Transport Strategy, Strategic Oversight & External Partnerships 19,677,044 17,776,500 18,627,154 19,483,482 20,365,421
Planning, Coastal Protection & Flooding 1,478,227 968,588 1,029,497 1,093,552 1,161,823
Regulatory Services, Community Protection & ICT 8,275,203 8,104,100 8,180,740 8,275,949 8,501,854
Savings to be identified (1,000,000) (2,000,000) (3,000,000)
Portfolio Expenditure 178,988,250 195,101,178 204,778,218 210,832,131 217,520,506

FUNDED BY:
Contribution (to)/from Balances & Reserves 928,356 1,179,639 (128,632) 217,190 10,068
Revenue Support Grant 5,356,976 8,645,564 8,738,475 8,814,262 8,883,205
Business Rates Retention 41,242,166 43,763,020 46,312,641 46,053,361 46,727,191
Other General Grants 33,876,632 36,417,100 36,569,597 36,802,832 37,014,518
Collection Fund (Council Tax) 97,584,120 105,095,855 113,286,137 118,944,486 124,885,524
Total Financing 178,988,250 195,101,178 204,778,218 210,832,131 217,520,506

BALANCES & RESERVES
Balance brought forward at 1 April 13,029,062 12,100,706 10,921,067 11,049,699 10,832,509
(Deficit)/Surplus for year (928,356) (1,179,639) 128,632 (217,190) (10,068)
Balance carried forward at 31 March 12,100,706 10,921,067 11,049,699 10,832,509 10,822,441

Minimum level of balances 8,000,000 8,000,000 8,000,000 8,000,000 8,000,000

Underlying Budget Deficit/(Surplus) - assuming future savings are met 928,356 1,179,639 (128,632) 217,190 10,068

GENERAL FUND SUMMARY - 2023/24 TO 2027/28

P
age 57

A
ppendix 1



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
APPENDIX 2 

 
Calculation of the Council Tax for the Financial Year 2024/25 

(In accordance with Section 31 and Sections 34 to 36 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992) 
 

1. The S.151 Officer has determined that the Council Tax base for the financial year 
2024/25 will be 54,407.3 [item T in the formula in Section 31 B(1) of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992, as amended (the “Act”)]. 

2. The Council calculates that the Council Tax requirement for the Council's own 
purposes for 2024/25 (excluding Parish and Town Council precepts) is 
£103,830,347. 

3. That the following amounts be now calculated by the Council for the financial year 
2024/25 in accordance with Section 31 and Sections 34 to 36 of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992: 

 

(a) To be determined by 
the S.151 Officer 
following notification 
of the final Parish and 
Town precepts 

Being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council 
estimates for the items set out in Section 31A(2) of the 
Act taking into account all precepts issued to it by Parish 
and Town Councils. 

(b) To be determined by 
the S.151 Officer 
following notification 
of the final Parish and 
Town precepts 

Being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council 
estimates for the items set out in Section 31A(3) of the 
Act. 

(c) To be determined by 
the S.151 Officer 
following notification 
of the final Parish and 
Town precepts 

Being the amount by which the aggregate at 3(a) above 
exceeds the aggregate at 3(b) above, calculated by the 
Council in accordance with Section 31A(4) of the Act as 
its Council Tax requirement for the year. (Item R in the 
formula in Section 31B(1) of the Act. 

(d) To be determined by 
the S.151 Officer 
following notification 
of the final Parish and 
Town precepts 

Being the amount at 3(c) above (Item R), all divided by 
Item 1 above (Item T), calculated by the Council, in 
accordance with Section 31B(1) of the Act, as the basic 
amount of its Council Tax for the year (including Parish 
and Town Council precepts). 

(e) To be determined by 
the S.151 Officer 
following notification 
of the final Parish and 
Town precepts 

Being the aggregate amount of all special items (Parish 
and Town Council precepts) referred to in Section 34(1) 
of the Act 

(f) £1,908.39 Being the amount at 3(d) above less the result given by 
dividing the amount at 3(e) above by 1 above (Item T) 
calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 
34(2) of the Act, as the basic amount of its Council Tax 
for the year (excluding Parish and Town Council 
precepts)   

  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 59

Appendix 2



 
 
(g)    Valuation Bands (Isle of Wight Council) 
 

A B C D E F G H 
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ 

1,272.26 1,484.30 1,696.35 1,908.39 2,332.48 2,756.56 3,180.65 3,816.78 
 
 

Being the amounts given by multiplying the amount at 3(f) above by the number 
which, in the proportion set out in Section 5(1) of the Act, is applicable to dwellings 
listed in a particular valuation band divided by the number which in that proportion 
is applicable to dwellings listed in Valuation Band D, calculated by the Council, in 
accordance with Section 36(1) of the Act, as the amounts to be taken into account 
for the year in respect of categories of dwellings in different valuation bands. 
 

4. That it be noted that for the financial year 2024/25 the Hampshire Police & Crime 
Commissioner is consulting upon the following amounts for the precept to be issued 
to the Council in accordance with Section 40 of the Local Government Finance Act 
1992, for each of the categories of the dwellings shown below:  

 Valuation Bands (Hampshire Police & Crime Commissioner) 

A B C D E F G H 
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ 

174.31 203.36 232.41 261.46 319.56 377.66 435.77 522.92 
  

5. That it be noted that for the financial year 2024/25 for the Hampshire and Isle of 
Wight Fire & Rescue Authority it is estimated that the following amounts for the 
precept issued to the Council in accordance with Section 40 of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992, for each of the categories of the dwellings shown 
below:  

 Valuation Bands (Hampshire and Isle of Wight Fire & Rescue Authority) 

A B C D E F G H 
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ 

55.23 64.43 73.64 82.84 101.25 119.66 138.07 165.68 
 

6. That having calculated the aggregate in each case of the amounts at 3(g), 4 and 5 
above, the Council, in accordance with Sections 31A, 31B and 34 to 36 of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992 as amended, hereby sets the following amounts as 
the amounts of Council Tax for the financial year 2024/25 for each of the categories 
of dwellings shown below:  

 

Valuation Bands (Total Council Tax) 

A B C D E F G H 
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ 

1,501.80 1,752.09 2,002.40 2,252.69 2,753.29 3,253.88 3,754.49 4,505.38 
 

Page 60



7. The Council determines in accordance with Section 52ZB of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992 that the Council’s basic amount of Council Tax for 2024/25, which 
represents a 4.99% increase, is not excessive in accordance with the principles 
approved by the Secretary of State under Section 52ZC of the Act: and it be noted 
that:  
i) The 4.99% increase includes a 2.0% increase to support the delivery of Adult 

Social Care 
ii) As the billing authority, the Council has not been notified by a major 

precepting authority (the Police and Crime Commissioner for Hampshire or 
the Hampshire and Isle of Wight Fire & Rescue Authority) that its relevant 
basic amount of Council Tax for 2024/25 is excessive and that the billing 
authority is not required to hold a referendum in accordance with Section 
52ZK of the Local Government Finance Act 1992.  

 
8. The S.151 Officer be given delegated authority to implement any variation to the 

overall level of Council Tax arising from the final notification of the Hampshire 
Police & Crime Commissioner and Hampshire and Isle of Wight Fire and Rescue 
Authority precepts. 

 
 

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



Saving 
Number Service Area Saving Proposal Impact on Service User Saving 2024/25

£

ADULT SOCIAL CARE & PUBLIC HEALTH

1. Adult Social Care Increase in respite offer at The Gouldings and The Adelaide Better access to respite care 63,100

2. Adult Social Care Withdrawal of grant funding for Raising Standards Training for private care providers
None - training has been in place for 4 years and uptake is now low. Continued 
support will be made available through quality assurance engagement with local 
providers

80,000

3. Adult Social Care Cancellation of Care Cubed Contract None - termination of contract for back office digital tool that is no longer required. 12,000

4. Adult Social Care Review of Market Supplement paid to Approved Mental health Practitioners No direct impact on service users 62,000

5. Adult Social Care Reduction in fleet budget for Adelaide and Gouldings None - Relinquish the use of minibuses for Adelaide and Gouldings and replace 
with a smaller passenger vehicle. No capital investment required 4,300

6. Adult Social Care Reconfiguration and allocation of internal care home maintenance None - The use of the Maintenance Operatives from the Adelaide and Gouldings 
across all internal services to reduce property call out costs 1,800

7. Adult Social Care Increase in Deputyship income Positive impact as greater number of local people will be able to benefit for 
support from the deputyship. 20,000

8. Adult Social Care Wightcare Restructure (continuation of 2023/2024 savings) Balance of savings to bring service to breakeven position (Impact as per 
2023/2024 budget). Inflationary increase in fees payable. 55,000

Sub-total 298,200

CHILDREN'S SERVICES, EDUCATION & CORPORATE FUNCTIONS

9. Children & Families Reduction in Administration staff No indirect impact on service users 92,000

10. Contact Centre The Contact centre is currently open 8am to 6pm Monday to Friday and 9-1pm on a Saturday. 
Proposal is to open at 9am .  

Service users will have the ability to seek support and guidance from contact 
centre advisors between the hours of 9-6pm Monday to Friday and  9 - 1pm on a 
Saturday

10,500

11. Contact Centre Reduce weekly opening hours of The Contact centre, closing at 5pm as opposed to 6pm.  Service users will have the ability to seek support and guidance from contact 
centre advisors. 10,500

12. Contact Centre Reduced opening hours for the contact centre.  Proposal is to close the Saturday service which 
is currently open 9-1pm.

Service users will have the ability to seek support and guidance from contact 
centre advisors during the week but not at the weekend. 8,400

13. Post Room Vacancy management - removal of staffing budget not utilised since 2022. No direct impact on service users 7,500

14. Revenues Collection Increasing court costs from £110.50 to £124.50 will allow the income target to be increased by 
£20k and will cover the costs incurred by the council for recovery activity.

The application for costs when a liability order is granted provides the debtor with 
the ability to pay over a longer period of time to suit individual financial 
circumstances. 

20,000

15. Ryde Help Centre Seek partner contribution for delivery of the service. No direct impact on service users 3,100

16. Mileage costs The council operates a flexible working policy and there is a reduced need for staff to claim a 
mileage allowance . No direct impact on service users 5,000

17. Legal Services Reduction in cost of subscriptions through re-procurement of the contract. No direct impact on service users 6,000

18. Fleet Income 
generation Increase income from providing driver training  and the hire of vehicles. Increased fees 5,000

INDICATIVE SAVINGS PROPOSALS 2024/5

P
age 63

A
ppendix 3



Saving 
Number Service Area Saving Proposal Impact on Service User Saving 2024/25

£

19. Human Resources Increase income from improved services for schools. Increased fees 5,000

20. Democratic Services Manage need for Printing/postage for committee papers.  No direct impact on service users 1,000

21. Democratic Services Reduce budget for Member development budget by continuing to promote alternative methods 
of learning. No direct impact on service users 5,000

22. Democratic Services Reduction in officer support to Cabinet. No direct impact on service users 15,000

23. Council-wide Reduction in general printing costs. No direct impact on service users 3,000

24. Legal Services Increase in the fixed fee for unilateral undertakings from £150 to £250 Increased fees 8,000

25. Legal Services Increase in the commercial rate for developer charges, section 106 agreements etc Increased fees 2,000

Sub-total 207,000

CLIMATE CHANGE, BIOSPHERE & WASTE

26. Parks Additional income from partner to support management of parts of Esplanade - Eastern Gardens 
and Ashley Gardens No direct impact on service users 5,000

27. Waste and 
Recycling Service 6% inflation related rise on collection plus service - new fee of £4.00 Increased fees 900

28. Waste and 
Recycling Service 6% inflation related rise on bulky Waste Service Increased fees 5,100

29. Waste and 
Recycling Service

6% inflation related  rise on Collection of Schools Waste (do  not charge schools treatment 
costs) Impacts on schools overall budget 3,800

Sub-total 14,800

DEPUTY LEADER, HOUSING & FINANCE

30. Housing Cessation of provision of external court desk service for housing Service to be provided in-house 70,000

31. Org Change Deletion of 1 graduate trainee post for which contracts end on 31/03/2024. Part vacancy management, no direct impact on service users 37,100

Sub-total 107,100

ECONOMY, REGENERATION, CULTURE & LEISURE

32. Libraries/Heritage Restructure of the Libraries and Heritage Service No direct impact on service users 24,000

Sub-total 24,000

LEADER, TRANSPORT & INFRASTRUCTURE, HIGHWAYS PFI, TRANSPORT STRATEGY, STRATEGIC OVERSIGHT & EXTERNAL PARTNERSHIPS

33. Transport Increase cost of replacement concessionary bus passes by 50%.  Charge is currently £10 and 
has remained uncharged for a number of years. Increased fees 3,000

34. Floating Bridge Deletion of vacant post of floating bridge supervisor No direct impact on service users 4,200

35. Harbours Transfer of Whitegates to Cowes Harbour Commission (completed) No direct impact on service users 1,100

36. Harbours Additional income from joining Harbour East pontoon with Greene King pontoon - creating 
additional walk ashore pontoons. Positive impact as it will improve the facilities 3,500

P
age 64



Saving 
Number Service Area Saving Proposal Impact on Service User Saving 2024/25

£

37. Harbours Saving from outsourcing the management of Ventnor Harbour - which include the responsibility 
for seaweed removal No direct impact on service users 38,000

38. Highways Phase 3 savings - net of increased staff costs.  Subject to confirmation after external legal 
advice. None 90,000

39. Transport Reduce concessionary fares budget in line with actual spend for the last three years. This is 
basis of returning to a direct reimbursement on actual concessionary journeys from April 2024. No direct impact on service users 500,000

40. Transport Staffing underspend - unused provision for pension not taken up and posts not at top of grade None 36,000

41. Communications Reduction of Publications & Professional Services budget No direct impact on service users 5,000

42. CX Deletion of contingency for feasibility studies and match-funding opportunities No direct impact on service users 431,500

Sub-total 1,112,300

REGULATORY SERVICES, COMMUNITY PROTECTION & ICT

43. Bereavement 
Services 6% inflation related rise on crematorium fees and charges Increased fees 100,000

44. Registration 
Services 6% inflation related rise on all marriage fees including wedding venues licence fees Increased fees 37,000

45. ICT Reduction in mobile telecom contract costs, following re-procurement of provider services No direct impact on service users 100,000

46. ICT Reduction in desktop equipment revenue budget to fund ad-hoc repairs following allocation of 
Capital Programme. No direct impact on service users 20,000

257,000

Total New Savings Initiatives 2,020,400

Savings Already Approved 729,600

£2,750,000

Sub-total

Grand Total

P
age 65



T
his page is intentionally left blank



NEW CAPITAL SCHEMES FOR APPROVAL IN 2024/25

CORPORATE 
RESOURCES

RINGFENCED GRANTS 
AND CONTRIBUTIONS

PRUDENTIAL 
BORROWING

TOTAL

£ £ £ £

5 Design costs
This allocation allows for schemes to be ready for construction phase of highway 
projects by undergoing advance design. In order to ensure project delivery, a 
resource plan is in discussion with Island Roads.

0 100,000 0 100,000

6 PFI Off Project network works
Funds will be used to enhance highway assets under the control of council, with 
the funding for 2024-25 likely to be devoted to assets prioritised over the next 6-
12 months.

0 703,187 0 703,187

7 Active Travel
This budget allocation is being used to support minor active travel schemes with a 
priority list being undertaken.

0 100,000 0 100,000

8 Bus Infrastructure

Island Roads makes recommendations on improving bus infrastructure for 
improved accessibility.  Approximately 20 improvements are allocated on a 
priority basis, based on Island Roads' assessment of safety scores and approved 
by the Client Management Team.

0 105,000 0 105,000

9 Equality Act

The budget allows for approximately 50 disabled bays to be installed each year.  
As well, an agreed programme is being finalised between Island Roads and Client 
Management Team for the upcoming financial year, allowing for approximately 30 
type 2 adjustments under the 2010 Equality Act.

0 100,000 0 100,000

10 Drainage
Island Roads and the Client Management Team are currently reviewing drainage 
schemes to reduce flooding. The budget allocation will be aligned with proposed 
drainage schemes.

0 375,000 0 375,000

11 HSIR Minor Safety schemes
As part of the Highway Safety Improvement Register, areas are identified where 
upgrades to the road network can be made, primarily involving the improvement 
of signage and small improvements at junctions.

0 100,000 0 100,000

12 Speed Review
In the Speed Review, an allocation of £250k was dedicated to construction work. 
Based on similar projects, this is expected to cost between £500k and £600k; this 
funding allows for these implementation costs.

0 325,000 0 325,000

13 Rights of Way

Due to flooding and Storm events 25 ROW closures have been required.  2024-25 
allocation to reinstate network through resurfacing and other works to reopen 
network.  2025-26 will be used to allocate for renewal of network on a priority 
basis.

0 351,759 0 351,759

14 Osborne Steps Retaining structure and drainage works associated with Osborne Steps, Shanklin. 0 500,000 0 500,000
18 Colwell Bay Car Park Car park exit reconfiguration. 0 11,054 0 11,054

19 Lugley Street Car Park Wall Rebuild of car park wall. 0 12,000 0 12,000

31 Folly Moorings Connection to pontoon, linked to income target. 17,500 0 0 17,500

38 Rights of Way Annual rights of way capital maintenance programme. 0 75,000 0 75,000
Sub-Total 17,500 2,858,000 0 2,875,500

49 Disabled Facilities Grants (DFG) Adaptations to support individuals in their own homes. 0 1,832,305 0 1,832,305

RESOURCES ALLOCATED FROM

REF NO SCHEME DESCRIPTION SCHEME DETAIL

Leader, Transport & Infrastructure, Highways PFI & Transport Strategy, Strategic Oversight & External Partnerships

Deputy Leader, Housing & Finance

P
age 67

A
ppendix 4



NEW CAPITAL SCHEMES FOR APPROVAL IN 2024/25

CORPORATE 
RESOURCES

RINGFENCED GRANTS 
AND CONTRIBUTIONS

PRUDENTIAL 
BORROWING

TOTAL

£ £ £ £

RESOURCES ALLOCATED FROM

REF NO SCHEME DESCRIPTION SCHEME DETAIL

51
Strategic Assets Annual 
Programme of Capital 
Maintenance Works

Budget provision for 2025/26 for reactive maintenance of the Councils whole 
property estate. Essential works for Council owned buildings.

250,000 0 0 250,000

53 CCTV at Somerton Stores
CCTV to protect facility and contents which includes other organisations records, 
contributing  towards income streams.

40,000 0 0 40,000

55
County Hall Car Park 
Resurfacing

Re-surfacing and lining for health & safety purposes. 30,000 0 0 30,000

58 Technology Forge Replacement Replacement of the property asset register software. 51,300 0 0 51,300

59 Franking Machine Purchase
Purchase of franking machine following cessation of lease arrangement, 
contributing towards revenue savings.

11,601 0 0 11,601

Sub-Total 382,901 1,832,305 0 2,215,206

61
Residential & Community Care 
Equipment

Annual replacement programme future years funding. 2024/25 already provided 
for in the existing programme.

0 100,000 0 100,000

64 Adelaide Window Replacement
Replacement of windows at Adelaide Care Home to improve energy efficiency and 
appearance for clients needing reablement support to return to independence.

0 400,000 0 400,000

65
Electronic Care Planning Hand 
Held Devices

Moving away from paper based records in line with CQC recommendations. 0 15,000 0 15,000

68
Adult Social Care Vehicle 
Replacement

Vehicle Replacement Programme for ASC as part of wider Fleet Management 
Replacement Programme.

0 473,000 0 473,000

Sub-Total 0 988,000 0 988,000

73
Capital Maintenance 
Programme

2025/26 annual programme of capital maintenance. 0 2,172,759 0 2,172,759

81 Fleet Vehicle Replacement Continuation of programme for 2025/26 280,000 0 0 280,000
Sub-Total 280,000 2,172,759 0 2,452,759

84
Seaclose Refurbishment 
(Coroner related)

Refurbishment of building to provide Coroners Court facilities. 86,000 0 0 86,000

86
GSCx Govt Security 
Requirements

Maintaining compliance with the PSN code of connection and keeping up to date 
with improvements and enhancements to improve resilience to cyber threats. 
Note that budget for 24/25 has already been approved.

80,000 0 0 80,000

Sub-Total 166,000 0 0 166,000

95 Coastal Defences
Works identified to meet the Shoreline Management Plan which sets out those 
areas where the Council will maintain and protect.

255,000 0 0 255,000

Sub-Total 255,000 0 0 255,000

Adult Social Care & Public Health

Children's Services, Education & Corporate Functions

Regulatory Services, Community Protection & ICT

Planning, Coastal Protection & Flooding

P
age 68



NEW CAPITAL SCHEMES FOR APPROVAL IN 2024/25

CORPORATE 
RESOURCES

RINGFENCED GRANTS 
AND CONTRIBUTIONS

PRUDENTIAL 
BORROWING

TOTAL

£ £ £ £

RESOURCES ALLOCATED FROM

REF NO SCHEME DESCRIPTION SCHEME DETAIL

124 Place/Towns Initiative Fund

This is a fund to support the delivery of the place plans that have been or are 
being delivered in areas across the Island; providing capital investments to 
support local initiatives identified in these local plans.  It is intended that the fund 
will work alongside the other funding opportunities that communities can access 
and will provide pump priming for local projects.  The aim is to support an 
improvement in the prosperity of the Island's communities.

200,000 0 0 200,000

Sub-Total 200,000 0 0 200,000

129 Public Realm
Continuation of programme for 2025/26 replacing end of life items for safety or 
service delivery, such as fences, gates, warning notices, play equipment, litter 
bins, benches or replacement of damaged structures.

100,000 0 0 100,000

Sub-Total 100,000 0 0 100,000
Total New Programme 1,401,401 7,851,064 0 9,252,465

Climate Change, Biosphere & Waste

Economy, Regeneration, Culture and Leisure

P
age 69



T
his page is intentionally left blank



COMPLETE CAPITAL PROGRAMME INCLUDING NEW SCHEMES

CAPITAL SUMMARY FORECAST ESTIMATE ESTIMATE ESTIMATE ESTIMATE ESTIMATE ESTIMATE
2023/24 to 2028/29 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 2028/29 TOTAL

£ £ £ £ £ £ £

Summary Programme
Leader, Transport & Infrastructure, Highways, PFI & 
Transport Strategy, Strategic Oversight & External 
Partnerships

10,209,211 9,765,003 2,522,210 1,632,840 2,194,000 3,049,047 29,372,312

Deputy Leader, Housing and Finance 8,174,916 19,654,261 12,750,000 13,000,000 0 0 53,579,176

Adult Social Care and Public Health 2,007,432 3,099,964 120,000 50,000 0 0 5,277,396

Children's Services, Education & Corporate Functions 6,210,433 4,510,965 2,452,759 0 0 0 13,174,157

Regulatory Services, Community Protection, & ICT 1,778,364 1,299,050 228,450 815,000 738,400 0 4,859,264

Planning, Coastal Protection and Flooding 3,568,006 1,252,401 220,000 36,700,000 0 0 41,740,407

Economy, Regeneration, Culture & Leisure 4,627,315 20,421,928 6,550,000 0 0 0 31,599,244

Climate Change, Biosphere & Waste 2,151,738 4,108,418 100,000 0 0 0 6,360,156

Total capital programme 38,727,415 64,111,991 24,943,419 52,197,840 2,932,400 3,049,047 185,962,112

Summary of Capital Resources
Unsupported borrowing 5,847,581 30,898,124 18,750,000 14,466,966 0 0 69,962,671
Corporate Resources (including capital receipts) 13,174,907 15,649,596 6,073,419 6,820,874 2,932,400 3,049,047 47,700,244
Ringfenced Grants 18,326,763 17,345,242 120,000 30,910,000 0 0 66,702,004
External Contributions 1,378,163 219,030 0 0 0 0 1,597,193

Total resources available 38,727,415 64,111,991 24,943,419 52,197,840 2,932,400 3,049,047 185,962,112

P
age 71

A
ppendix 5



REF NO CAPITAL PROGRAMME FORECAST ESTIMATE ESTIMATE ESTIMATE ESTIMATE ESTIMATE ESTIMATE
2023/24 to 2028/29 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 2028/29 TOTAL

£ £ £ £ £ £ £
Leader, Transport & Infrastructure, Highways, PFI & Transport Strategy, Strategic Oversight & External Partnerships

1 Solent Transport Bike Share 111,780 0 0 0 0 0 111,780
2 Highways PFI Additional Street Lighting 95,000 0 0 0 0 0 95,000
3 PFI Contract Costs 766,310 852,320 1,093,210 1,557,840 2,194,000 3,049,047 9,512,727
4 Newport Junctions 1,553 1,205,639 0 0 0 0 1,207,192
5 Design costs 45,484 50,000 50,000 0 0 0 145,484
6 PFI Off Project network works 194,740 100,946 602,241 0 0 0 897,927
7 Active Travel 0 0 100,000 0 0 0 100,000
8 Bus Infrastructure 120,877 55,000 50,000 0 0 0 225,877
9 Equality Act 75,000 50,000 50,000 0 0 0 175,000

10 Drainage 335,775 175,000 200,000 0 0 0 710,775
11 HSIR Minor Safety schemes 8,000 50,000 50,000 0 0 0 108,000
12 Speed Review 218,981 225,000 100,000 0 0 0 543,981
13 Rights of Way 0 200,000 151,759 0 0 0 351,759
14 Osborne Steps 179,028 500,000 0 0 0 0 679,028
15 Traffic Regulations Orders 246,414 0 0 0 0 0 246,414
16 Wroxall St Johns Road 150,000 0 0 0 0 0 150,000
17 Niton Undercliff 30,000 0 0 0 0 0 30,000
18 Colwell Bay Car Park 0 11,054 0 0 0 0 11,054
19 Lugley Street Car Park Wall 0 12,000 0 0 0 0 12,000
20 Advanced Design 33,000 0 0 0 0 0 33,000
21 DfT Local Transport Capital Funding 970,000 0 0 0 0 0 970,000
22 Binstead Flood  Alleviation 0 170,000 0 0 0 0 170,000
23 Car Parking Contactless 139,621 0 0 0 0 0 139,621
24 Safety Schemes 264,532 460,000 0 0 0 0 724,532
25 Safer Roads Scheme 640,000 1,881,000 0 0 0 0 2,521,000
26 Transforming Cities Fund Ryde 4,911,318 338,350 0 0 0 0 5,249,668
27 Local Electric Vehicle Infrastructure 26,148 1,625,000 0 0 0 0 1,651,148
28 Floating Bridge 6 60,766 0 0 0 0 0 60,766
29 Newport Harbour Walls Emergency Works 31,500 563,644 0 0 0 0 595,144
30 Whitegates Pontoon 85,000 0 0 0 0 0 85,000
31 Folly Moorings 0 17,500 0 0 0 0 17,500
32 Safer Streets - Ryde CCTV 4,133 0 0 0 0 0 4,133
33 Safer Streets - Newport CCTV 30,837 0 0 0 0 0 30,837
34 Active Travel - Mews Lane 127,562 0 0 0 0 0 127,562
35 Active Travel - Scarrots Lane 0 79,200 0 0 0 0 79,200
36 Active Travel - Ryde Pedestrianisation 0 668,350 0 0 0 0 668,350
37 West Wight Greenway 80,558 400,000 0 0 0 0 480,558

P
age 72



REF NO CAPITAL PROGRAMME FORECAST ESTIMATE ESTIMATE ESTIMATE ESTIMATE ESTIMATE ESTIMATE
2023/24 to 2028/29 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 2028/29 TOTAL

£ £ £ £ £ £ £
38 Rights of Way 197,711 75,000 75,000 75,000 0 0 422,711
39 England Coastal Path Establishment 27,584 0 0 0 0 0 27,584

Total 10,209,211 9,765,003 2,522,210 1,632,840 2,194,000 3,049,047 29,372,312

Deputy Leader, Housing and Finance
40 Howard House 60,000 0 0 0 0 0 60,000
41 RSAP Purchase of Flats 103,618 0 0 0 0 0 103,618
42 Emergency Housing HMO 480,000 200,000 0 0 0 0 680,000
43 Housing Equity 0 1,894,950 0 0 0 0 1,894,950
44 Community Housing Fund 248,186 1,000,000 0 0 0 0 1,248,186
45 Medina Avenue 0 629,340 0 0 0 0 629,340
46 Affordable Housing 1,150,000 12,500,000 12,500,000 13,000,000 0 0 39,150,000
47 Refugee Housing 2,179,000 0 0 0 0 0 2,179,000
48 Brownfield Land Release Programme 561,639 1,014,765 0 0 0 0 1,576,404
49 Disabled Facilities Grants 1,794,931 1,832,305 0 0 0 0 3,627,236
50 Housing Renewal and Well Being  Grants 110,452 100,000 0 0 0 0 210,452
51 Strategic Assets 180,518 250,000 250,000 0 0 0 680,518
52 County Hall CCTV & Security 17,500 0 0 0 0 0 17,500
53 CCTV at Somerton Stores 0 40,000 0 0 0 0 40,000
54 County Hall Windows, Toilets & Lifts 676,302 0 0 0 0 0 676,302
55 County Hall Car Park Resurfacing 0 30,000 0 0 0 0 30,000
56 County Hall UPS & Generator 42,001 0 0 0 0 0 42,001
57 Server Room Air Conditioning 249,388 0 0 0 0 0 249,388
58 Technology Forge Replacement 0 51,300 0 0 0 0 51,300
59 Franking Machine Purchase 0 11,601 0 0 0 0 11,601
60 Salix Decarbonisation / Energy Management 321,381 100,000 0 0 0 0 421,381

Total 8,174,916 19,654,261 12,750,000 13,000,000 0 0 53,579,176

Adult Social Care and Public Health
61 Residential & Community Care Equipment 84,629 50,000 50,000 50,000 0 0 234,629
62 Gouldings 1,568,718 500,000 0 0 0 0 2,068,718
63 Adelaide 0 331,964 0 0 0 0 331,964
64 Adelaide Window Replacement 0 400,000 0 0 0 0 400,000
65 Electronic Care Planning Hand Held Devices 0 15,000 0 0 0 0 15,000
66 Community Equipment Stores 198,258 0 0 0 0 0 198,258
67 Supported Independent Living 0 1,400,000 0 0 0 0 1,400,000
68 Adult Social Care Vehicle Replacement 0 403,000 70,000 0 0 0 473,000
69 Carisbrooke House 54,918 0 0 0 0 0 54,918
70 Wightcare Digital Switchover 100,910 0 0 0 0 0 100,910

Total 2,007,432 3,099,964 120,000 50,000 0 0 5,277,396

P
age 73



REF NO CAPITAL PROGRAMME FORECAST ESTIMATE ESTIMATE ESTIMATE ESTIMATE ESTIMATE ESTIMATE
2023/24 to 2028/29 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 2028/29 TOTAL

£ £ £ £ £ £ £
Children's Services, Education & Corporate Functions

71 Priority Schools Building Programme 267,304 0 0 0 0 0 267,304
72 Devolved Formula Capital 1,134,568 263,456 0 0 0 0 1,398,024
73 Capital Maintenance Programme 3,784,856 3,231,163 2,172,759 0 0 0 9,188,779
74 Primary Behaviour Support 134,606 0 0 0 0 0 134,606
75 Queensgate MUGA 101,534 0 0 0 0 0 101,534
76 Special Educational Needs & Disabilities (SEND) 21,318 890,317 0 0 0 0 911,635
77 Foster Carer Adaptations 0 19,030 0 0 0 0 19,030
78 Beaulieu House 128,208 0 0 0 0 0 128,208
79 East Cowes Family Centre 8,836 0 0 0 0 0 8,836
80 Family Hubs 55,330 0 0 0 0 0 55,330
81 Fleet Vehicle Replacement 511,194 47,000 280,000 0 0 0 838,194
82 Electric Vehicle Charging Points 62,677 60,000 0 0 0 0 122,677

Total 6,210,433 4,510,965 2,452,759 0 0 0 13,174,157

Regulatory Services, Community Protection, and ICT
83 Crematorium Refurbishment 98,309 0 0 0 0 0 98,309
84 Seaclose Refurbishment (Coroner related) 0 86,000 0 0 0 0 86,000
85 ASB and Community Safety CCTV 249 0 0 0 0 0 249
86 GSCx Govt Security Requirements 84,226 80,000 80,000 0 0 0 244,226
87 ICT Equipment Programme 1,078,827 620,300 28,450 450,000 0 0 2,177,577
88 Backup Server/Storage & Firewall Replacement 36,284 0 0 0 0 0 36,284
89 Corporate Applications Update 50,804 60,000 0 0 0 0 110,804
90 Switches in Data Centre 261,986 0 0 190,000 290,400 0 742,386
91 Data Centre Infrastructure 89,000 452,750 120,000 0 0 0 661,750
92 Cyber Security 78,678 0 0 175,000 448,000 0 701,678

Total 1,778,364 1,299,050 228,450 815,000 738,400 0 4,859,264

Planning, Coastal Protection and Flooding
93 West Wight Coastal Defences Match Funding 0 241,833 0 0 0 0 241,833
94 EA Coastal Defences Match Funding 3,500,000 547,000 0 36,700,000 0 0 40,747,000
95 Coastal Defences 68,006 463,568 220,000 0 0 0 751,574

Total 3,568,006 1,252,401 220,000 36,700,000 0 0 41,740,407

P
age 74



REF NO CAPITAL PROGRAMME FORECAST ESTIMATE ESTIMATE ESTIMATE ESTIMATE ESTIMATE ESTIMATE
2023/24 to 2028/29 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 2028/29 TOTAL

£ £ £ £ £ £ £
Economy, Regeneration, Culture and Leisure

96 East Cowes Landslip 16,388 0 0 0 0 0 16,388
97 BAE ERDF Regeneration 14,698 0 0 0 0 0 14,698
98 Medina Valley Venture Quays East Cowes 2,499,496 6,000,000 5,000,000 0 0 0 13,499,496
99 Branstone Farm 47,026 0 0 0 0 0 47,026

100 Nicholson Road Ryde 48,727 0 0 0 0 0 48,727
101 Newport Harbour Regeneration 0 3,750,000 1,250,000 0 0 0 5,000,000
102 Pier Street Toilets 0 1,558,000 0 0 0 0 1,558,000
103 Medina Valley (KMP) 0 500,000 0 0 0 0 500,000
104 Heritage High Street (Ryde/Newport) 115,550 800,000 0 0 0 0 915,550
105 Other Regeneration Schemes 0 2,110,381 0 0 0 0 2,110,381
106 Camp Hill Infrastructure 175,333 250,000 0 0 0 0 425,333
107 Changing Places 76,000 0 0 0 0 0 76,000
108 Shared Prosperity - Town Centres & High Streets 46,469 0 0 0 0 0 46,469
109 Browns Clubhouse 90,871 0 0 0 0 0 90,871
110 Sandown Town Hall 617,902 2,244,288 0 0 0 0 2,862,190
111 Dinosaur Isle Museum 0 180,000 0 0 0 0 180,000
112 BAE Sheds 75,000 461,049 0 0 0 0 536,049
113 Lod Louis Library 386,843 0 300,000 0 0 0 686,843
114 New Cultural Centre 150,000 0 0 0 0 0 150,000
115 Ryde Cultural Venue 50,000 1,862,895 0 0 0 0 1,912,895
116 Beach Huts 0 85,316 0 0 0 0 85,316
117 Cowes - The Cut 60,000 0 0 0 0 0 60,000
118 Appley Tower 40,000 0 0 0 0 0 40,000
119 Cothey Bottom Roof 0 250,000 0 0 0 0 250,000
120 Shanklin Lift Painting & Canopy 0 170,000 0 0 0 0 170,000
121 Downside Recreation Ground Drainage 12,085 0 0 0 0 0 12,085
122 Medina Leisure Combined Heat and Power systems 15,295 0 0 0 0 0 15,295
123 Sales and marketing equipment 89,632 0 0 0 0 0 89,632
124 Place/Towns Initiative Fund 0 200,000 0 0 0 0 200,000

Total 4,627,315 20,421,928 6,550,000 0 0 0 31,599,244

125 Climate Change, Biosphere & Waste
126 Waste Contract Capital Payments 1,963,794 4,008,418 0 0 0 0 5,972,212
127 Green Bin Service 67,858 0 0 0 0 0 67,858
128 AONB Removing Barriers 1,788 0 0 0 0 0 1,788
129 Public Realm 118,297 100,000 100,000 0 0 0 318,297

Total 2,151,738 4,108,418 100,000 0 0 0 6,360,156

Total 38,727,415 64,111,991 24,943,419 52,197,840 2,932,400 3,049,047 185,962,112

P
age 75



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
Page 1 

 

Isle of Wight Council Forward Plan – February 2024  
 
The Forward Plan is a list of all Key Decisions that are due to be considered no earlier than 28 clear working days from the date of this notice by the 
appropriate Decision Making Body or individual including those deemed to be key decisions. 
 
A list of all Council Members can be found on the Council’s web site from this link  
 
The Leader of the Council (also responsible for Transport and Infrastructure, Highways PFI and Transport Strategy, Strategic Oversight and External 
Partnerships) is Cllr Phil Jordan.  
 
Other members of the Cabinet are: 
Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Housing and Finance - Cllr Ian Stephens 
Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care and Public Health – Cllr Debbie Andre 
Cabinet Member for Children's Services, Education and Corporate Functions – Cllr Jonathan Bacon 
Cabinet Member for Economy, Regeneration, Culture and Leisure - Cllr Julie Jones-Evans 
Cabinet Member for Planning, Coastal Protection and Flooding - Cllr Paul Fuller 
Cabinet Member for Climate Change, Biosphere and Waste- Cllr Lora Peacey-Wilcox 
Cabinet Member for Regulatory Services, Community Protection and ICT – Cllr Karen Lucioni 
 
* Any items highlighted in yellow are changes or additions to the previous Forward Plan 
**Any decisions that are intended to be made in private with the exclusion of press and public, where for example personal or commercially sensitive 
information is to be considered, in accordance with the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)(Meetings and Access to Information)(England) 
Regulations 2012, will require the publication of specific notices, including the reason(s) for the meeting to be held in private. 
 
 

Title and Summary of Proposed 
Decision 

Decision Making Body 
and name of relevant 
Cabinet Member 

Meeting 
Date/Proposed 
Publishing Date 

Relevant documents 
submitted to decision 
maker to be 
considered* 

Consultees (including 
town and parish 
councils) and 
Consultation Method 

May report or 
part of report be 
dealt with in 
private? If so - 
why? 

125 Year Lease of Rew Valley 
Sports Centre and playing fields, 
Ventnor to The Island Free School 
 
Rew Valley Sports Centre – grant of a 
new lease to the Island Free School 

Deputy Leader Cabinet 
Member for Housing and 
Finance 
 
Councillor Ian Stephens 
Date 1st added: 5 
September 2023 

Not before 19th Oct 
2023 

Signed delegation by the 
Leader 

 
 

Open 
 

P
age 77

A
genda Item

 7



 

Title and Summary of Proposed 
Decision 

Decision Making Body 
and name of relevant 
Cabinet Member 

Meeting 
Date/Proposed 
Publishing Date 

Relevant documents 
submitted to decision 
maker to be 
considered* 

Consultees (including 
town and parish 
councils) and 
Consultation Method 

May report or 
part of report be 
dealt with in 
private? If so - 
why? 

 

 
 

 
Page 2 

Acquisition of land at Pyle Street, 
Newport 
 
Purchase of land at Pyle Street, 
Newport 

Deputy Leader Cabinet 
Member for Housing and 
Finance 
 
Councillor Ian Stephens 
Date 1st added: 15 
December 2023 

19 Jan 2024   
 

Part exempt 
The report will 
detail the terms of 
a property deal 
that will have not 
been completed. 
As such, it would 
not be appropriate 
for some of the 
detail to be in the 
public domain 
before the 
purchase is 
completed. 

District 2 TRO Review - Newport 
and Carisbrooke 
 
TRO Proposals and public feedback 

Cabinet 
 
Leader (with 
responsibility Transport 
and Infrastructure, 
Highways PFI and 
Transport Strategy, 
Strategic Oversight and 
External Partnerships) 
Date 1st added: 7 
November 2023 

8 Feb 2024  Parish and Community 
Councils 
Ward Councillors 
Public 
 
 

Open 
 

Determination of School 
Admission Arrangements for 
2025/26 
 
To determine the Isle of Wight 
Council’s school admissions 
arrangements for 2025/2026. 

Cabinet 
 
Cabinet Member for 
Children's Services, 
Education and Corporate 
Functions 
Date 1st added: 5 July 
2023 

8 Feb 2024   
 

Open 
 

P
age 78



 

Title and Summary of Proposed 
Decision 

Decision Making Body 
and name of relevant 
Cabinet Member 

Meeting 
Date/Proposed 
Publishing Date 

Relevant documents 
submitted to decision 
maker to be 
considered* 

Consultees (including 
town and parish 
councils) and 
Consultation Method 

May report or 
part of report be 
dealt with in 
private? If so - 
why? 

 

 
 

 
Page 3 

Budget and Council Tax Setting 
2024-2025 and Future Years' 
Forecasts 
 
Budget and Council Tax setting 

Cabinet 
 
Full Council 
 
Deputy Leader Cabinet 
Member for Housing and 
Finance 
Date 1st added: 4 
October 2023 

8 Feb 2024 
 
28 Feb 2024 

  
 

Open 
 

QPMR Q3 - 2023/24 
 
To provide a summary of progress 
against Corporate Plan activities and 
measures for the period October 
2023 to December 2023. To inform 
Cabinet of areas of particular 
success, issues requiring attention 
and remedial activity in place to deal 
with these. To provide a report on the 
financial position of the council for the 
same period 

Cabinet 
 
Deputy Leader Cabinet 
Member for Housing and 
Finance 
Date 1st added: 13 
October 2023 

8 Feb 2024   
 

Open 
 

Integration of LEP functions into 
Upper Tier Local Authorities 
 
New arrangements following the 
government arrangements on 
changes to LEP functions 

Cabinet 
 
Cabinet Member for 
Economy, Regeneration, 
Culture and Leisure 
Date 1st added: 6 
December 2023 

8 Feb 2024  Upper Tier local 
authorities 
DHLUC 
Solent Partners 
 
 

Open 
 

P
age 79



 

Title and Summary of Proposed 
Decision 

Decision Making Body 
and name of relevant 
Cabinet Member 

Meeting 
Date/Proposed 
Publishing Date 

Relevant documents 
submitted to decision 
maker to be 
considered* 

Consultees (including 
town and parish 
councils) and 
Consultation Method 

May report or 
part of report be 
dealt with in 
private? If so - 
why? 

 

 
 

 
Page 4 

Council Tax Premiums on Second 
Homes and Empty Properties 
 
New Levelling-Up and Regeneration 
Act 2023 has given local authorities 
the power to implement a premium of 
up to 100 per cent council tax charge 
on any property empty or unfurnished 
for over 1 year. It also gives the 
power to implement a premium of up 
to 100 per cent council tax charge on 
any second home from the following 
financial year.  
Decision to be made as to whether 
the council wishes to implement such 
premium. 
 

Cabinet 
 
Full Council 
 
Deputy Leader Cabinet 
Member for Housing and 
Finance 
Date 1st added: 3 
January 2024 

8 Feb 2024 
 
28 Feb 2024 

 No consultation is 
required for this report as 
it relates to legislative 
changes. 
 

Open 
 

Sale of Plot A2, Island Technology 
Park, Whippingham IOW 
 
Sale of the last plot of employment 
land at this site to Island Distribution 
Limited 

Cabinet Member for 
Economy, Regeneration, 
Culture and Leisure 
 
Councillor Julie Jones-
Evans 
Date 1st added: 12 
January 2024 

9 Feb 2024   
 

Part exempt 
Appendix 2 will 
contain 
confidential 
agreed heads of 
terms 

P
age 80



 

Title and Summary of Proposed 
Decision 

Decision Making Body 
and name of relevant 
Cabinet Member 

Meeting 
Date/Proposed 
Publishing Date 

Relevant documents 
submitted to decision 
maker to be 
considered* 

Consultees (including 
town and parish 
councils) and 
Consultation Method 

May report or 
part of report be 
dealt with in 
private? If so - 
why? 

 

 
 

 
Page 5 

Bus Service Improvement Plus 
Fund (BSIP+) – Local Bus Service 
Enhancements 
 
Decision to approve provide grant 
funding for enhancements to local 
bus services, through utilising 
Department for Transport (DfT) BSIP 
+ funding allocation for the Island. 

Leader (with 
responsibility Transport 
and Infrastructure, 
Highways PFI and 
Transport Strategy, 
Strategic Oversight and 
External Partnerships) 
 
Councillor Phil Jordan 
Date 1st added: 25 
January 2024 

22 Feb 2024   
 

Open 
 

Pay Policy 
 

Full Council 
 
Deputy Leader Cabinet 
Member for Housing and 
Finance 
Date 1st added:  
4 October 2023 

28 Feb 2024  
 

 
 

Open 
 

Appointment of Independent 
Remuneration Panel Member 
 
To appoint an independent 
remuneration panel member 

Full Council 
 
 
Date 1st added: 25 
January 2024 

28 Feb 2024   
 

Open 
 

P
age 81



 

Title and Summary of Proposed 
Decision 

Decision Making Body 
and name of relevant 
Cabinet Member 

Meeting 
Date/Proposed 
Publishing Date 

Relevant documents 
submitted to decision 
maker to be 
considered* 

Consultees (including 
town and parish 
councils) and 
Consultation Method 

May report or 
part of report be 
dealt with in 
private? If so - 
why? 

 

 
 

 
Page 6 

Discretionary Rate Relief Policy 
 
New legislation enables local 
authorities to backdate discretionary 
rate relief where appropriate. The 
ability to backdate will need to be 
updated within the policy and then it 
will be local discretionary decision as 
to how far the relief can be 
backdated.  
The decision to be made is to 
whether to adopt this ability to 
backdate within the policy.  
 

Full Council 
 
 
Date 1st added: 6 
December 2023 

28 Feb 2024  No consultation required 
as this relates to 
legislative changes. 
 

Open 
 

Determine School Academic 
Year/Term Dates for 2025/2026 
 
To seek approval from the Cabinet on 
the determination of the pattern of 
school term and holiday dates for the 
school year 2025/2026. 

Cabinet 
 
Cabinet Member for 
Children's Services, 
Education and Corporate 
Functions 
Date 1st added: 5 July 
2023 

14 Mar 2024   
 

Open 
 

Director of Public Health Annual 
Report - Childhood Obesity - Call 
to Action 
 
To note the Annual Report of the 
Director of Public Health 2023/24 and 
to endorse any recommendations 
with the report. 

Cabinet 
 
Cabinet Member for Adult 
Social Care and Public 
Health 
Date 1st added: 5 
September 2023 

14 Mar 2024  N/A 
 

Open 
 

P
age 82



 

Title and Summary of Proposed 
Decision 

Decision Making Body 
and name of relevant 
Cabinet Member 

Meeting 
Date/Proposed 
Publishing Date 

Relevant documents 
submitted to decision 
maker to be 
considered* 

Consultees (including 
town and parish 
councils) and 
Consultation Method 

May report or 
part of report be 
dealt with in 
private? If so - 
why? 

 

 
 

 
Page 7 

Smokefree Pledge and Smokefree 
Generation Service 
 
The report will outline plans to spend 
up to a maximum of £2,547,480 on 
smoking prevention and cessation 
programmes and services. 
 
The plans are in light of recent 
government announcements to create 
a Smokefree Generation and make 
smoking obsolete by 2050. Isle of 
Wight Council will be allocated an 
additional £169,296 per year from 06 
April 2024 to expand current efforts to 
reduce smoking rates.  
 

Cabinet 
 
Cabinet Member for Adult 
Social Care and Public 
Health 
Date 1st added: 7 
February 2024 

14 Mar 2024   
 

Open 
 

Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 
2024-25 
 
The purpose of the report is to 
provide an overview of Early Years 
childcare sufficiency on the Isle of 
Wight. The LA has a statutory duty to 
ensure there are sufficient Early 
Years childcare places that are 
accessible to parents. This duty is 
presented through this report to 
elected council members and is made 
available to parents. 

Cabinet 
 
Cabinet Member for 
Children's Services, 
Education and Corporate 
Functions 
Date 1st added: 6 
December 2023 

14 Mar 2024   
 

Open 
 

P
age 83



 

Title and Summary of Proposed 
Decision 

Decision Making Body 
and name of relevant 
Cabinet Member 

Meeting 
Date/Proposed 
Publishing Date 

Relevant documents 
submitted to decision 
maker to be 
considered* 

Consultees (including 
town and parish 
councils) and 
Consultation Method 

May report or 
part of report be 
dealt with in 
private? If so - 
why? 

 

 
 

 
Page 8 

Cowes Medina Crossing 
 
Following a number of technical and 
financial reviews the council is 
seeking to best understand the 
options and recommendation for 
future operating models for the chain 
ferry crossing at East Cowes / Cowes 
across the mouth of the River 
Medina. 
 
This report sets out the process of 
commissioning an options appraisal 
and a potential Commissioning 
Strategy for alternative technical and 
economical solutions to the current 
vessel operated by the council. 
 

Cabinet 
 
Leader (with 
responsibility Transport 
and Infrastructure, 
Highways PFI and 
Transport Strategy, 
Strategic Oversight and 
External Partnerships) 
Date 1st added: 25 
January 2024 

14 Mar 2024  Cabinet members 
Corporate Scrutiny  
Internal Council Services 
 
 

Open 
 

Island Planning Strategy 
 
As the Draft IPS was not agreed on 5 
October, Full Council is to specify its 
objections and to formally refer the 
matter back to the Cabinet. 
  

Cabinet 
 
Full Council 
 
Cabinet Member for 
Planning, Coastal 
Protection and Flooding 
Date 1st added: 17 March 
2022 

14 Mar 2024 
 
20 Mar 2024 

 Internal and External  
Full public consultation 
 

Open 
 

P
age 84



 

Title and Summary of Proposed 
Decision 

Decision Making Body 
and name of relevant 
Cabinet Member 

Meeting 
Date/Proposed 
Publishing Date 

Relevant documents 
submitted to decision 
maker to be 
considered* 

Consultees (including 
town and parish 
councils) and 
Consultation Method 

May report or 
part of report be 
dealt with in 
private? If so - 
why? 

 

 
 

 
Page 9 

Concessionary Travel 
Reimbursement 2024-25 
 
The report will set out the 
concessionary travel arrangements 
on local bus services for year 
2024/25, the recommended rate per 
concessionary journey and the 
associated implications. 

Cabinet 
 
Leader (with 
responsibility Transport 
and Infrastructure, 
Highways PFI and 
Transport Strategy, 
Strategic Oversight and 
External Partnerships) 
Date 1st added: 6 
December 2023 

14 Mar 2024  Negotiations with local 
bus operator/s via a 
commissioned 
consultant. 
 

Part exempt 
The appended 
technical report 
from the 
commissioned 
consultant 
outlining the 
concessionary 
travel 
negotiations, 
calculations and 
recommended 
rate, will be 
exempt as it will 
contain financial 
information which 
is commercially 
sensitive to the 
local bus 
operator. 

Disposal of the former Yarmouth 
Primary School, Yarmouth 
 
The sale of the former Yarmouth 
Primary School following a marketing 
campaign in 2023. 

Cabinet 
 
Deputy Leader Cabinet 
Member for Housing and 
Finance 
Date 1st added: 12 
January 2024 

14 Mar 2024   
 

Part exempt 
Some appendices 
will be exempt 
from publication 
as they will 
contain 
information 
regarding the bids 
received, 
including the 
financial offers.  
This is due to 
commercial 
confidentiality. 

P
age 85



 

Title and Summary of Proposed 
Decision 

Decision Making Body 
and name of relevant 
Cabinet Member 

Meeting 
Date/Proposed 
Publishing Date 

Relevant documents 
submitted to decision 
maker to be 
considered* 

Consultees (including 
town and parish 
councils) and 
Consultation Method 

May report or 
part of report be 
dealt with in 
private? If so - 
why? 

 

 
 

 
Page 10 

Sale of the former Weston 
Academy, Weston Road, Totland, 
Isle of Wight 
 
The terms of the sale and approval to 
sell the freehold, and approval to 
enter into a grant agreement with the 
purchaser. 

Cabinet 
 
Deputy Leader Cabinet 
Member for Housing and 
Finance 
Date 1st added: 12 
January 2024 

14 Mar 2024   
 

Part exempt 
Appendix 2 will 
contain 
confidential 
agreed heads of 
terms 

Future Governance Report 
 
To consider moving to a Committee 
system for Council decision-making 
from May 2024 

Full Council 
 
 
Date 1st added: 7 
November 2023 

20 Mar 2024  Internal 
External  
Public 
 

Open 
 

Approval of the Members’ 
Allowance Scheme 2024 - 2025 
 
To approve the Members’ Allowance 
Scheme for 1 April 2024 to 31 March 
2025– a legal requirement [under reg. 
10 (1) of the Local Authorities 
(Members’ Allowances) (England) 
Regulations 2003 as amended] for 
annual approval on or before 31 
March. The Scheme was adopted on 
19 January 2022 following the 
council’s acceptance in full of the 
statutory recommendations made in 
the IRP’s sixteenth report, and has 
rolled forwards each year subject to 
any annual adjustments required 
under the agreed indexation 
provision. 

Full Council 
 
 
Date 1st added: 25 
January 2024 

20 Mar 2024   
 

Open 
 

P
age 86



 

Title and Summary of Proposed 
Decision 

Decision Making Body 
and name of relevant 
Cabinet Member 

Meeting 
Date/Proposed 
Publishing Date 

Relevant documents 
submitted to decision 
maker to be 
considered* 

Consultees (including 
town and parish 
councils) and 
Consultation Method 

May report or 
part of report be 
dealt with in 
private? If so - 
why? 

 

 
 

 
Page 11 

Adoption of three LCWIPs (East 
Cowes & Whippingham; Cowes, 
Gurnard & Northwood; Brading, 
Bembridge & St Helens) as a 
Supplementary Planning 
Documents (SPD) 
 
Following a period of public 
consultation, Cabinet to be asked to 
adopt three separate Local Cycling 
and Walking Infrastructure Plans 
(LCWIP) for East Cowes & 
Whippingham; Cowes, Gurnard & 
Northwood; and Brading, Bembridge 
& St Helens as Supplementary 
Planning Documents (SPD) that post 
adoption can be used as a material 
consideration in planning decisions. 

Cabinet 
 
Cabinet Member for 
Planning, Coastal 
Protection and Flooding 
Date 1st added: 1 March 
2023 

9 May 2024  Prior to the cabinet 
decision, a formal 6 week 
public consultation in the 
LCWIPs will have taken 
place in line with 
Planning legislation for 
the adoption of SPDs, 
including consultation 
with a number of 
statutory consultees 
 

Open 
 

The adoption of the Newport 
Harbour Masterplan 
Supplementary Planning 
Document 
 
Whether to adopt the draft Newport 
Harbour Masterplan as a 
supplementary planning document 

Cabinet 
 
Cabinet Member for 
Economy, Regeneration, 
Culture and Leisure 
Date 1st added: 7 
September 2022 

9 May 2024   
 

Open 
 

P
age 87



 

Title and Summary of Proposed 
Decision 

Decision Making Body 
and name of relevant 
Cabinet Member 

Meeting 
Date/Proposed 
Publishing Date 

Relevant documents 
submitted to decision 
maker to be 
considered* 

Consultees (including 
town and parish 
councils) and 
Consultation Method 

May report or 
part of report be 
dealt with in 
private? If so - 
why? 

 

 
 

 
Page 12 

District 4 TRO review - Alverstone, 
Arreton, Lake, Newchurch, 
Sandown and Shanklin 
 
TRO proposals and public feedback 

Cabinet 
 
Leader (with 
responsibility Transport 
and Infrastructure, 
Highways PFI and 
Transport Strategy, 
Strategic Oversight and 
External Partnerships) 
Date 1st added: 7 
November 2023 

9 May 2024  Town and Parish 
Councils 
Ward Councillors 
Public 
 

Open 
 

Post 16 Transport Policy Statement 
2024 
 
To seek Cabinet approval for the Post 
16 Transport Policy Statement which 
applies to the 2024 academic year. 
The Post 16 policy statement must be 
published annually by 31 May each 
year. 

Cabinet 
 
Cabinet Member for 
Children's Services, 
Education and Corporate 
Functions 
Date 1st added: 5 July 
2023 

9 May 2024   
 

Open 
 

P
age 88



 

Title and Summary of Proposed 
Decision 

Decision Making Body 
and name of relevant 
Cabinet Member 

Meeting 
Date/Proposed 
Publishing Date 

Relevant documents 
submitted to decision 
maker to be 
considered* 

Consultees (including 
town and parish 
councils) and 
Consultation Method 

May report or 
part of report be 
dealt with in 
private? If so - 
why? 

 

 
 

 
Page 13 

Better Care Fund (BCF) 2023 – 
2025 Midway Update 
 
The Better Care Fund (BCF) 
programme supports the Isle of Wight 
Council (IWC) and Integrated Care 
Board (ICB) to successfully deliver 
integrated working that best supports 
Island residents. The requirements of 
the BCF are set by NHS England 
(NHSE), including details on financial 
and contractual arrangements. The 
BCF has historically been a 1 year 
plan but the DHSC changed the BCF 
to a 2 year plan for 2023 to 2025. The 
Cabinet is asked to note the 2023/25 
BCF midway Update 

Cabinet 
 
Cabinet Member for Adult 
Social Care and Public 
Health 
Date 1st added: 13 
October 2023 

9 May 2024   
 

Open 
 

Draft Health Contributions SPD 
 
Following a period of public 
consultation, Cabinet to be asked to 
adopt an SPD, prepared in 
partnership with the NHS Hampshire 
& IOW Integrated Care Board, that 
seeks financial contributions from 
qualifying new development towards 
new or extended primary care 
infrastructure in areas where there 
are existing capacity issues. 

Cabinet 
 
Cabinet Member for 
Planning, Coastal 
Protection and Flooding 
Date 1st added: 12 
January 2024 

9 May 2024  Prior to the cabinet 
decision, a formal 6-week 
public consultation on the 
Draft SPD will have taken 
place in line with 
Planning legislation for 
the adoption of SPDs, 
including consultation 
with a number of 
statutory consultees and 
the general public 
 

Open 
 

P
age 89



 

Title and Summary of Proposed 
Decision 

Decision Making Body 
and name of relevant 
Cabinet Member 

Meeting 
Date/Proposed 
Publishing Date 

Relevant documents 
submitted to decision 
maker to be 
considered* 

Consultees (including 
town and parish 
councils) and 
Consultation Method 

May report or 
part of report be 
dealt with in 
private? If so - 
why? 

 

 
 

 
Page 14 

Draft Sustainable Drainage 
Systems SPD 
 
Following a period of public 
consultation, Cabinet to be asked to 
adopt an SPD that sets out the 
sustainable drainage principles and 
design solutions required from new 
development of all scales that will 
reduce the amount of surface water 
entering the combined sewer and 
help mitigate flooding. 

Cabinet 
 
Cabinet Member for 
Planning, Coastal 
Protection and Flooding 
Date 1st added: 12 
January 2024 

9 May 2024  Prior to the cabinet 
decision, a formal 6-week 
public consultation on the 
Draft SPD will have taken 
place in line with 
Planning legislation for 
the adoption of SPDs, 
including consultation 
with a number of 
statutory consultees and 
the general public 
 

Open 
 

District 6 TRO Review - Brighstone, 
Freshwater, Rookley, Shalfleet, 
Shorwell, Totland and Yarmouth 
 
TRO proposals and public feedback 

Cabinet 
 
Leader (with 
responsibility Transport 
and Infrastructure, 
Highways PFI and 
Transport Strategy, 
Strategic Oversight and 
External Partnerships) 
Date 1st added: 7 
November 2023 

13 Jun 2024  Town and Parish 
Councils 
Ward Councillors 
Public 
 

Open 
 

 

P
age 90


	Agenda
	5a Budget and Council Tax Setting 2024-2025 and Future Years' Forecasts
	REVENUE BUDGET 2024/25
	REVENUE FORECASTS 2025/26 TO 2027/28
	ESTIMATED RESERVES 2023/24 TO 2027/28
	Appendix 1
	App 1- Published

	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Final Published

	Appendix 4
	NEW

	Appendix 5
	ALL


	7 Consideration of the Forward Plan

